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This agenda has been posted at the McAlester City Hall, distributed to the appropriate news media, and posted on the
City website: www.cityofincalester.com within the required time frame.

The Mayor and City Council request that all cell phones and pagers be turned off or set to vibrate. Members of the
audience are requested to step outside the Council Chambers to respond to a page or to conduct a phone
conversation.

The McAlester City Hall is wheelchair accessible. Sign interpretation or other special assistance for disabled
attendees must be requested 48 hours in advance by contacting the City Clerk’s Office at 918.423.9300, Extension
4956.

CALL TO ORDER

Announce the presence of a Quorum.

ROLL CALL

SCHEDULED BUSINESS

L. Discussion on the annual City of McAlester Audited Financial Statements and
Independent Auditor’s Report for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2019. (Toni Ervin,
Assistant City Manager)
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ADJOURNMENT

CERTIFICATION

I certify that this Notice of Meeting was posted on this day of 2019 at am./p.m. as
required by law in accordance with Section 303 of the Oklahoma Statutes and that the appropriate news media was
contacted. As a courtesy, this agenda is also posted on the City of McAlester website: www.cityofmcalester.con.

Cora M. Middleton, City Clerk
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PO Box 578 (1** & Washington) McAlester, Oklahoma 74502 - 918-423-9300 - FAX 918-421-4971 - www.cityofmcalester.com

December 9, 2019

Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council and the Citizens of the City of
McAlester, Oklahoma:

Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of McAlester for its
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. This was the i
consecutive year that the government has achieved this award. In order to be awarded a Certificate
of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Management assumes the responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information
contained in this report. City of McAlester's management is responsible for establishing and.
maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that assets of the City are protected
from loss, theft or misuse in order to ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for
the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatements. We believe
the information, as presented, is accurate in all material aspects and that all disclosures necessary
to enable the reader to gain an adequate understanding of the City’s financial activities have been
included. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements.

The City’s financial statements have been audited by Finley and Cook, a firm of licensed certified
public accountants. The independent audit was conducted to provide reasonable assurance that
the financial statements of the City are free of material misstatement. The independent auditor has
issued an unmodified opinion on the City’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019.
The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this
report.

Management provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic
financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of
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transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The
City’s MD&A can be found immediately following the independent auditor's report.

Profile of the Government

The City is governed by the Council-Manager form of government. This form of government most
closely resembles the private sector with the Manager serving as the Chief Executive Officer, the
Mayor as the Chairman of the Board, and the Council as the Board of Directors. The City Council
is the legislative body for the City of McAlester. It is comprised of the Mayor, Vice-Mayor, and five
council members who are elected to serve four-year terms. The seven members represent each of
the City’s six wards.

The City of McAlester provides a variety of municipal services to 18,000+ residents, including police
and fire protection, planning and zoning services, parks and recreational activities, and the
construction and maintenance of streets, and other infrastructure. The City also provides water,
wastewater, storm water, and solid waste services to its residents under the legal entity of (MPWA)
McAlester Public Works Authority.

The City reports on a fiscal year basis, beginning July 1stand ending June 30w. All funds of the
City with revenues and expenditures are required to have annual budgets. The City Manager's
proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1 is submitted to the
City Council prior to June 1. A public hearing is held prior to June 15 to obtain citizen comments.
Following the public hearing, but not later than seven days prior to July 1, the budget is adopted by
Ordinance of the City Council. The adopted budget is filed with the Office of the State Auditor and
Inspector. The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function, and department. All supplemental
appropriations require City Council approval. The City Manager may transfer appropriations
between departments without City Council approval up to $25,000. Supplemental appropriations
must also be filed with the Office of the State Auditor and Inspector. The City maintains an
encumbrance accounting system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control.

Local Economy

McAlester is the premier trade hub for southeast Oklahoma with a service area covering more than
70,000 residents across 8 counties and consistently remains the retail center for these
communities. Those residents rely on McAlester for quality housing, employment opportunities,
retail and dining options, and healthcare services. For those products and services in limited supply
in rural Oklahoma, McAlester has convenient access to the markets in Tulsa, Oklahoma City, and
Dallas.

The McAlester economy continues to thrive as new investments opens additional opportunities for
regional residents. Several of our local industries have expanded, our downtown is witnessing
renewed energy and interest, and our highway commercial district is set to welcome a new
shopping center in 2019.

This growth is reflected in our sales and use tax collections, which continues to exhibit vibrancy
and stability. The increased tax revenue will help ensure the City can maintain its services and
infrastructure and advance the interest of our citizens.

The City of McAlester, like most cities in the State of Oklahoma, relies on sales tax. Sales tax can
be a volatile revenue. Consequently, the City’s finances are directly impacted by economic
conditions. Our local economy shows signs of optimistic indicators. Use tax continues to rise above
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expectations and was over budget. Sales tax represents 59% of the City's total General Fund
Revenue and was slightly under budget. Our local economy continues demonstrating stability and
strength.

Therefore, the economic outlook remains positive. Annual trends in City sales tax are illustrated
below:

Change in Sales Tax over prior years

15.0%
10.0%
5.0%

0.0%

-15.0% SALES %

Major Initiatives

The City focused on capital needs and infrastructure projects during 2018-2018. City Management
and Council asked, and the citizens of McAlester voted for a .50% dedicated sales tax for our
infrastructure improvements during the fiscal year. Our comprehensive Storm Water Study is
funded and will help prepare us for the repair or replacement of our storm water infrastructure.
Numerous storm water projects were planned and completed this year. Several of our needed
water treatment infrastructure repairs or replacements have been completed and will continue;
particularly in the Connally Addition. Our MCC Controls were replaced and the city is planning to
put into place our secondary water source. We are systematically replacing our aging water and
waste water infrastructure. It will mirror what we have accomplished in our streets department panel
replacement and asphalt overlay programs. With the streets study that was accomplished a few
years ago that identified the conditions and needs of our streets, we have been able to
systematically repair and replace major thoroughfares. We have continued to work on our
Comprehensive Plan “Moving McAlester Forward” with website feedback, town hall meetings, and
public surveys for the future planning of this City. In addition to the Wastewater and Stormwater
infrastructure as mentioned above, we have identified important areas such as, Crime Prevention,
Employee Satisfaction & Retention, Expansion of EMS Transport Services and Sidewalk & Trails
Connectivity. New Playground equipment has been added to Thunderbird and Connally Parks. As
well as improvements to Chadick Park including the installation of the Thunder Basketball Court.
An underused concrete parking lot has been converted to a new greenspace known as “Arvest
Park’. The City partnered with the Health Department on the Wayfinding Signs project encouraging
walkability around downtown McAlester and broke grown on the much, anticipated Downtown
Streetscape Project. McAlester Tourism launched and promoted the 150t Celebration of our
community with numerous events and special promotions. Completed a $4.6 million rehabilitation
as the McAlester Regional Airport. The McAlester Police Department, E911, and Municipal Courts
relocated to the historic Carl Albert Building. We are continually looking for opportunities to enrich
the quality of life for citizens in our community.
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The preparation of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is a combined effort of the Finance
Department and the professional assistance of Crawford & Associates, P.C. Our sincere
appreciation is extended to all who contributed to its preparation.

Finally, we would like to thank the Mayor, the members of the City Council, and the members of
the Audit and Finance Committee for their policy guidance which is contained in this document. As
the governing body, we appreciate their leadership, encouragement, and support in strengthening
and improving the fiscal policies of the City of McAlester.

Respectfully Submitted,

Y257 s I

Peter Stasiak Sherri Swift
City Manager Chief Financial Officer
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rFlNLEY&COOK

\ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of McAlester, Oklahoma

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of McAlester, Oklahoma (the “City™) as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of the City’s discretely presented component unit McAlester Regional
Health Center Authority. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors, whose report thereon
has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the McAlester
Regional Health Center Authority, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

(Continued)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT, CONTINUED

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2019, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States require that the management’s discussion
and analysis, budgetary comparison schedules, the schedule of changes in net pension liability and related
ratios, the schedule of employer contributions, the schedule of investment returns, the schedule of
proportionate share of net pension liability—Oklahoma Firefighters Pension and Retirement System, the
schedule of City contributions—Oklahoma Firefighters Pension and Retirement System, the schedule of
proportionate share of net pension liability (asset)—Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System,
and the schedule of City contributions—Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System, as listed in the
table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures
to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

(Continued)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT, CONTINUED

Other Matters, Continued

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The accompanying introductory section, other
supplementary information, and the statistical section, as listed on the table of contents, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and other supplementary schedules, as
listed in the table of contents, are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States. In our opinion, based on our audit, the combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements and other supplementary schedules are fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any

assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 9, 2019, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

( |
Findo + Cokt, PLLC
Shawnee, Oklahoma
December 9, 2019
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA
JUNE 30, 2019

As management of the City of McAlester, we offer readers this narrative overview and analysis of the
financial activities of the City of McAlester for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. We encourage
readers to use this information in conjunction with the City’s financial statements, which follow this
section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The City’s overall net position improved during the year ended June 30, 2019. Total net position
increased by $8,109,249 with the City’s total government-wide assets and deferred outflows
continuing to exceed its total liabilities and deferred inflows at June 30, 2019, by $37,503,779 which
represents its total government-wide net position.

e The City’s governmental activities experienced a current year increase in net position of $2,701,996,
while business-type activities experienced a current year increase in net position of $5,407,253.
However, while overall net position did improve from the prior year, there are still several areas of
concern and conditions that are worth noting in terms of the City’s financial condition. These
concerns or conditions include the following:

o While the City has total government-wide net position amounting to $37,503,779, it is segregated
by $29,912,471 in a net investment in capital assets and $10,840,610 of net position restricted for
various purposes, thus leaving the City with ($3,249,302) in a total unrestricted net position
(deficit), with ($4,147,166) of the unrestricted net position (deficit) located in the City’s
governmental activities and $897,864 of positive unrestricted net position located in the City’s
business-type activities. Due to the implementation of pension accounting standards in the FY
2015, the City’s net pension liabilities are now being reported in the amounts of $10,663,168 for
governmental activities and $925,561 for business-type activities.

o At June 30, 2019, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$20,709,800. That net amount is the result of $16,800,962 of restricted fund balance, $3,094,491
of assigned fund balance, and $814,347 of unassigned fund balance.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements presented herein include all of the activities of the financial reporting entity of
the City of McAlester (the “City”). The financial reporting entity consists of the following separate legal
entities:

o The Primary Government
o City of McAlester
McAlester Public Works Authority
McAlester Airport Authority
McAlester National Defense & Industrial Development Authority (no current activity)
McAlester Economic Development Authority (no current activity)

O 0O O O

o Discretely Presented Component Units
o MocAlester Regional Health Center
o McAlester Parking Authority
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA
JUNE 30, 2019

The entities included as part of the primary government are included in this report within the
governmental-wide statements in either of two categories of activities — governmental and business-type.
The discretely presented component units are reported in individual columns labeled Component Units.
This management discussion and analysis focuses on the primary government as defined above.

The governmental-wide financial statements present the complete financial picture of the City’s reporting
entity from the economic resources measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting. They
present governmental activities and business-type activities separately and combined, with separate
columns for the individual discretely-presented component units. For governmental activities, these
statements tell how these services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future
spending. Fund financial statements also report the City’s operations in more detail than the government-
wide statements by providing information about the City’s most significant funds. These government-
wide statements include all assets of the City (including infrastructure) and deferred outflows, as well as
all liabilities (including long-term debt) and deferred inflows.

Reporting the City as a Whole
The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of McAlester’s basic
financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities (on pages 22 & 23,
respectively) report information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps
answer questions. These statements include all assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows
using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector
companies. All of the current year’s revenues, expenses and deferrals are taken into account regardless of
when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the City’s net position and changes in net position from the prior year. You
can think of the City’s net position — the difference between assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and
deferred inflows — as one way to measure the City’s financial condition, or position. Over time, increases
or decreases in the City’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving,
deteriorating, or remaining steady. However, you must consider other non-financial factors, such as
changes in the City’s tax base, the condition of the City’s roads and other infrastructure, and the quality of
services to assess the overall health of the City.

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities are divided into three types of activities:
e Governmental activities -- Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including the police,

fire, general administration, streets, and parks. Sales taxes, franchise fees, fines, and state and federal
grants finance most of these activities.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA
JUNE 30, 2019

» Business-type activities -- The City’s activities that charge a fee to customers to help cover all or most
of the cost of certain services it provides. The City’s water, sewer, and solid waste collections
utilities, along with its airport activities, are reported here.

e Discretely-presented component units -- These account for activities of the City’s reporting entity that
do not meet the criteria for blending, and include the Regional Health Center Authority and the
Parking Authority.

Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds — not the City
as a whole. The City of McAlester, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure
and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. Some funds are required to be
established by State law and by bond covenants. However, management establishes many other funds to
help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal
responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants and other money. All of the funds of the City of McAlester
can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds -- Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus
on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as spendable resources available at the
end of the fiscal year. These funds are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when “measurable and available”. The
governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City’s general government
operations and the basic service it provides. Governmental fund information helps determine whether
there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s
programs. The differences of results in the governmental fund financial statements to those in the
government-wide financial statements are explained in a reconciliation following each governmental fund
financial statement.

Proprietary funds -- When the City charges customers for the services it provides — whether to outside
customers or to other units of the City — these services are generally reported in proprietary funds.
Enterprise funds are one type of proprietary funds and are used to report the same functions presented as
business-type activities in the governmental-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to
account for its water and sewer operations and solid waste collection, disposal services, and airport
services. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail.

Fiduciary funds - When the City is responsible for assets that — because of a trust arrangement or other
fiduciary requirement — can be used only for trust beneficiaries or other parties, such as the City’s single
employer Defined Benefit Retirement Plan and Trust Fund, the City is responsible for ensuring that the
assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purpose. All of the City’s fiduciary activities are
reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net
position. We exclude these activities from the City’s government-wide financial statements because the
City cannot use these assets to finance operations.
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A FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE

For the year ended June 30, 2019, net position for the governmental activities and business-type activities
totaled $37,503,779, which was an increase of $8,109,249. The results indicate the City, as a whole,
improved its financial position from the prior year.

The City of McAlester’s Change in Net Position

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
Beginning net position $ 2,918,158 $ 26476372 $§ 29,394,530
Increase in net position 2,701,996 5407253 8,109.249
Ending net position 8 5,620,154 S 31,883,625 s 37,503,779

Following is a summary comparison of change in net position from last year for the City of McAlester.

The City of McAlester’s Net Position

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Assets:
Current and other assets $ 23,691,402 § 23,952,954 8 7,199,228 $ 6,583,618 § 30,890,630 § 30,536,572
Capital assets 41,481,519 43,845,043 31,970,044 27,401,179 73,451,563 71,246,222

Total assets 65,172,921 67,797,997 39,169,272 33,984,797 104,342,193 101,782,794
Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred amounts related to pensions 3,293,162 3,052,562 188,166 240,963 3,481,328 3,293,525
Deferred amounts on refunding 755,783 859,155 - - 755,783 859,155
Liabilities:
Long-term liabilities 60,149,390 65,894,493 6,998,296 7,342,808 67,147,686 73,237,301
Other liabilities 1,958,917 1,927,668 448,247 377,724 2,407,164 2,305,392

Total liabilities 62,108,307 67,822,161 7,446,543 7,720,532 69,554,850 75,542,693
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred amounts related to pensions 1,493,405 969,395 27.270 28,856 1,520,675 998,251
Net position:
Net investiment in capital assets (1,073,290) 165,470 30,985,761 26,202,550 29,912,471 26,368,020
Restricted 10,840,610 10,407,721 - - 10,840,610 10,407,721
Unrestricted (deficit) (4,147,166) (7,655,033) 897,864 273812 (3,249,302) (7,381,211)

Total net position s 5,620,154 S 2,918,158 S 31,883,625 § 26476,372 S 37,503,779 § 29,394,530

The significant decline in the amount of long-term liabilities of the governmental activities is directly
related to the payment of principal on the revenue bonds of $4,660,000 during the current year and the
decrease in net pension liability in the amount of $1,388,817 from the prior year.

The largest portion of the City’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets, less any related debt
used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. This year the net investment in capital assets
amounted to approximately $29.9 million. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported
net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Another portion of the City’s net position, approximately $10.8 million, represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net
position is generally considered to be available to be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations
to citizens and creditors. For the current year, this unrestricted net position amounted to a $3,249,302
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deficit. The governmental activities unrestricted net position deficit balance of $4,147,166 is primarily the
result of the net pension liabilities and their related deferred outflows and inflows that are reported as a
component of the unrestricted net position (deficit).

The City of McAlester’s Statement of Activities

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Revenues:
Programrevenues:

Charges for Services $§ 3404026 $§ 3,356,861 $ 9777964 $ 9,954,849 $ 13,181,990 $ 13,311,710

Grants & Contributions 1,770,963 1,262,254 - - 1,770,963 1,262,254

Capital Grants & Contributions 299,061 361,676 4,664,651 535,817 4,963,712 807,493
General Revenues:

Sales & Use Tax 16,658,759 14,800,284 - - 16,658,759 14,800,284

Other Taxes 2,087,502 1,978,285 - - 2,087,502 1,978,285

Other General Revenues 882,208 786,291 133,157 117,281 1,015,365 903,572

Total Revenues 25,102,519 22,545,651 14,575.772 10,607,947 39,678.291 33,153,598
Program Expenses:
Legislature 107,346 114,976 - - 107,346 114,976
Administration 3,528,957 3,766,344 - - 3,528,957 3,766,344
Public safety 7,706,769 8,723,246 - - 7,706,769 8,723,246
Conmmunity services 2,913,948 2,077,211 - - 2,913,948 2,077,211
Administration services 1,421,431 1,230,232 - - 1,421,431 1,230,232
Health and welfare 285,692 273,745 - - 285,692 273,749
Public works 3,366,650 3,573,130 - - 3,366,650 3,573,130
Economic development 395,730 426,789 - - 395,730 426,789
Stormwater 5,255 3479 - - 5,255 . 3479
Payment to component unit-Hospital 327,225 - - - 327,225 -
Interest on long-term debt 2,064,810 2,291,099 - - 2,064,810 2,291,099
Water - - 4,550,644 4,267,855 4,550,644 4,267,855
Sewer - - 2,162,221 2,201,943 2,162,221 2,201,943
Sanitation - - 1,975,479 2,158,235 1,975479 2,158,235
Airport - - © 756,885 720,170 756.885 720,170
Total Expenses 22,123,813  22,480.255 9,445,229 9,348.203 31,569,042 31,828,458

Revenues in excess of expenses 2,978,706 65,396 5,130,543 1,259,744 8,109,249 1,325,140
Net Transfers (276.710) 435,718 276,710 (435,718) - -
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position § 2,701,996 § 501,114 $ 5,407,253 § 824,026 $ 8,109249 $ 1,325,140

For the year ended June 30, 2019, on a government-wide basis, the City experienced an improvement in
its financial condition resulting in an increase in total net position of $8,109,249. The increase in the size
from the prior year change in net position can be attributable to an increase in operating grants and
contributions of $508,709, an increase in capital grants and contributions of $4,066,219, an increase in
sales & use tax of $1,858,475 and a decrease of expenses of $259,416.

The City’s current year governmental activities increase in net position of $2,701,996 represents an
increase from the increase in net position of $501,114 experienced in the prior year. This year’s increase
in the change in net position from the prior year change can be attributable in large part to an increase in
grants and contributions of $508,709 from prior year, an increase in sales & use tax of $1,858,475 from
prior year, a decrease in expenses of $356,442 in the current year and a decrease in net transfers of
$712,428.
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The business-type activities experienced a current year increase in net position of $5,407,253, which
represents a significant change from the increase in net position of $824,026 experienced in the prior
year. This year’s increase in the change in net position from the prior year change can be attributable in
large part to an increase in capital grants and contributions of $4,128,834 and an increase in net transfers
of $712,428.

In reviewing the activity net (expense)/revenue, all business-type functions with the exception of sewer
charges for services were sufficient to cover all related expenses.

A FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As the City completed its 2019 fiscal year, the governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of
$20,709,800. However, that net amount is the result of $16,800,962 of restricted fund balance,
$3,094,491 of assigned fund balance, and $814,347 of unassigned fund balance.

For the reasons discussed previously in regards to business-type activities, the enterprise funds reported
combined net position of approximately $31.9 million.

The General Fund’s total fund balance increased by $133,924, or 19.5%, which is an improvement from
the decrease in total fund balance of the prior year. This is due in a large part to an increase in taxes from
the prior year, netted with a decrease in transfers out from the prior year.

The McAlester Public Works Authority enterprise fund reported an increase in net position, after transfers
and capital contributions of $970,909 for the year.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the General Fund reported actual budgetary basis amounts available for
appropriations above final estimates by $147,758 or a 0.95% positive variance. General Fund actual
expenditures were under final appropriations by $568,129 or a 3.7% positive variance.

CAPITAL ASSETS & DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At June 30, 2019, the City had approximately $73.5 million invested in capital assets including land,
buildings, machinery and equipment, park facilities, water, sewer and stormwater systems, roads and
bridges. This represents a net increase of $2,205,341 from last year.

Below are details regarding the City’s capital assets for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 201 8.!

1 For more detailed information on capital asset activity please refer to page 47-48, Note 5. Capital Assets and Depreciation
2 For more detailed information on long-term debt activity please refer to page 49-54, Note 6. Long-Term Debt and Debt

Service Requirements
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The City of McAlester’s Capital Assets
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Land $ 180308 §$ 1,803,086 $ 212,571 $ 212,571 $§ 2015657 $ 2015657
Buildings and Improvements 17,437,798 16,827,683 10,084,197 9,797,639 27,521,995 26,625,322
Machinery and Equipment 11,410,348 10,899,657 4,348,855 4,186,457 15,759,203 15,086,114
Infrastructure 76,313,403 76,313,403 - - 76,313,403 76,313,403
Utility Property - - 55,043,227 48,229,166 55,043,227 48,229,166
W ater rights contracts - - 719,075 719,075 719,075 719,075
Construction-in-progress 701,409 563,449 681,051 1,141,969 1.382.460 1,705,418

Totals 107,666,044 106,407,278 71,088.976 64,286,877 178,755,020 170,694,155
Less Depreciation (66.184.525) (62,562,235) (39,118,932) (36,885,698) (105.303.457) (99,447,933)

Totals, Net $ 41,481,519 $ 43,845,043 $ 31,970,044 8 27,401,179 § 73,451,563 § 71,246,222

This year’s more significant capital asset additions include $111,905 for Indiana Ave drainage project,
$419,082 for FY 18-19 asphalt overlay projects, $188,283 for 2017 CDBG utility maintenance project,
$385,472 for FY 18-19 canal wall replacements, $140,165 for a 2018 Western Star dump truck,
$5,186,613 for airport runway rehab project, $263,196 for federal building remodel for police station,
$269,550 for Belmont walking trail project, and $295,100 for phase II stormwater project.

Debt Administration

At year-end, the City had $55.6 million in long-term debt outstanding, which represents a $4,650,118
decrease from the prior year.?

The City of McAlester’s Long-term Debt

Governme ntal Business-type
Activities Activities Totals
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Capital leases payable $ 437646 § 535071 $ -3 - 3 437646 $ 535,071
Claims liability 116,924 125414 - - 116,924 125414
Accrued compensation 2387313 2.426,684 233,567 223,654 2,620,880 2,650,338
Notes Payable - - 953,229 1,137,305 953,229 1,137,305
Revenue Bonds Payable 46,544,339 50,755,339 - - 46,544,339 50,755,339
Landfill Closure and Post-Closure - - 4307416 4412413 4307416 4412413
Water contract obligations - - 31,054 61,324 31,054 61,324
Deposits subject to refund - - 547469 531,871 547469 531.871
Totals $49,486,222 $53.842,508 § 6,072,735 $ 6.366,567  §55,558,957 8§ 60,209.075

The 2002 Revenue Bonds contain $746,818, $704,610, $664,799, and $920,949 (par value) of capital
appreciation bonds. The accreted value of the first three bonds is $3,930,000 each, and will require three
separate $3,930,000 payments maturing February 1, 2031, February 1, 2032 and February 1, 2033. The
fourth bond will mature on February 1, 2034 and require a payment of $5,770,000. No payments are
required to be made on these bonds until maturity.
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ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

McAlester is a rural community of 18,198 residents and serves as a regional hub in Southeastern
Oklahoma for shopping, healthcare, tourism, and employment opportunities. Located in Pittsburg County,
McAlester is the largest city within the boundaries of the Choctaw Nation of Oklahoma.

Through several partnerships, the community continues to attract new businesses as well as foster growth
of existing businesses that help generate sales tax and increase employment. Investments in the
Downtown Historic District continue to support the revitalization of existing areas through infrastructure
and beautification projects.

The much anticipated “Shops at McAlester” continues to be a viable project promising to bring 180,000
square feet of retailers, restaurants, and other companies to the George Nigh Expressway.
Groundbreaking is expected by the end of 2019. The project will add approximately 300 full and part-
time jobs and more retail development is expected. New restaurants are currently being planned or in the
process of being built.

The McAlester Army Ammunition Plant and its tenant organizations have continued to modernize and
grow their production capacity. Already the largest employer in the region, the Plant has reached 2,500
total employees, an increase of almost 1,000 employees since 2015. As the Plant secures additional
workload and mission, more employees will need to be hired.

Since Spirit AeroSystems received its designation as a Center of Excellence, it has grown from 300
employees to 350 employees. It continues to add new machinery and equipment to its facilities, ensuring
the total employment will continue to rise.

The McAlester Regional Health Center is preparing for the next phase of its expansion project. With the
new emergency center fully operational, the next development will include a new cancer center and
Intensive Care Unit (ICU). Additionally, McAlester Regional is relocating its family medicine practices
into downtown McAlester, which will help spur additional economic activity and growth.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and creditors with a general
overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it receives. If you
have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the City Clerk’s Office
at 1* and Washington, McAlester, Oklahoma or phone at (918) 423-9300.
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Government-Wide Statement of Net Position— June 30, 2019

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable, net of allowance
Estimated amounts due from third-party payers
Franchise taxreceivable
Ambulance receivable, net of allowance
Court fines receivable, net of allowance
Due from other governments
Prepaid items
Other receivables
Intemal balances
Inventory
Investment in joint venture
Restitution receivable:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Net pension asset
Capilal assets:

Land, improvements, and construction in progress

Other capital assets, net of depreciation
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred amounts related to pensions
Deferred amounl on refunding

Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Estimated amounts due to third-party payers
Due to bondholders
Unearned revenue
Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred amounts related to pensions

NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for emergencies
Restricted for economic development-bonds
Restricted for economic development
Restricted for ES11
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for stormmwater
Restricted for other
Unrestricted (deficit)
Total net position

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Primary Government Component Units
McAles ter
Governmental Business-type Regional Health McAlester
Activities Activities Total Center Authority Parking Authority
3 19,044,018 S 3,601,182 s 22,645,200 3 22,362,266 s 68,709
253,708 = 253,708 11,831,012 -
180,077 1,286,597 1,466,674 14,851,819 -
- - - 217,940 -
55,499 - 55,499 - -
85,163 - 85,163 - -
1,168,368 - 1,168,368 - -
2,346,568 259,622 2,606,190 - -
= a - 2,820,879 -
135,300 - 135,300 - -
12,013 (12,013) - = -
- . = 2,293,197 =
- 2,063,840 2,063,840 4942192 -
10,684 - 10,684 - -
28,582 = 28,582 - -
371,422 - 371,422 - -
2,504,495 1,612,697 4,117,192 4,285,940 -
38,977,024 30,357,347 69,334,371 38,900,252 -
65.172.921 39,169,272 104,342,193 102,505,497 68,709
3,293,162 188,166 3,481,328 - -
755,783 - 755,183 - -
4,048,945 188,166 4237111 - -
687,988 311,809 999,797 4,728,773 135
487,126 73,826 560,952 4,508,306 -
774,361 1,758 776,119 - -
1,681 = 1,681 - :
7,761 60,854 68,615 - 140
3,592,512 475,285 4,067,797 1,324,499 -
56,556,878 6,523.011 63,079,889 11,211,763 -
62,108.307 7,446,543 69,554,850 21,773.341 275
1,493,405 27,270 1,520.675 - -
(1,073,290) 30,985,761 29,912,471 29,959,656 -
3,824,227 - 3,824,227 - -
800,000 - 800,000 - -
455,403 - 455,403 - -
315,003 - 315,003 - -
2,744,336 = 27744,336 5 z
742,445 - 742,445 - -
1,959,196 - 1,959,196 2,879,565 -
(4.147,166) 807.864 (3,249,302) 47,892,935 68.434
$ 5,620,154 S 31,883,625 $ 37,503,779 3 80,732,156 $ 68,434
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Government-Wide Statement of Activities —Year Ended June 30, 2019

Net ie) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Prugram Rowoue Primary Government Campument Units
McAlester
Operating Capital Grants Regional McAlester
Cherges for Grants and and Guvernmental Business-type Health Center Parking
Funetiums (Prog rums Exfenses Services Cuniritartony Contributivns Activities Agtivitien Tutal Authority Authurity
Primary guvernment
Govemnmentul Activilies
Legisliture 5 107,346 s - 5 - 3 - 5 (107,346) 3 - $  (107.346) § - 1 -
AdmiusLmtion 3,528,957 570,857 169,478 - (2,788,222) - (2,788,222) - -
Public safety 7,706,769 1,629,585 1,298,306 28,192 (4,750,686) - (4,750,686) - -
Commmunily services 2,913,948 90,939 54,528 112,869 (2653,612) - (2,655,612) - -
Administralion services 1,421,431 270,786 = - (1,150,643) - (1,150,645) - -
Heallh and wellare 285692 - 87,701 - (197,991) - (197,991) - -
Public Works 3,366,650 46% 160,550 - (3,201 404) - (3,201,404) - -
Economc development 395,730 - - 158,000 (237.730) - (237,730) -
Stormwater 5255 837,163 - - 831,908 - 831,908 - -
Hospilal (paymenl Lo component unit) 327225 - - - (327225) - (327,225) - -
Interest on long-lerm debt ORI - - - (0GR - (1061 R10) - S
Total govemmental activities 22123813 A6 LT (10,649,703} - (6E40.763) - -
Business-y pe uclivities:
Water 455058 40130 - 20686 - man NI - -
Sewer 2062221 [KiriREH - - - (4v2om) (492,079) - o
Sanitation 197547 ER[ L EH - - - 1,129,143 1,129,143 - -
Airport T56.885 10LRT0 - 4643 565 - 3.58.950 IG5 - -
Total business-type aclilics [rrwsc] TG - 3.0 631 - A5997.3850 A4, 97380 -
Talal prmary govemmenl 31 3G AL 13,1807 [T %.‘Jﬁ!‘ill [HEtith. a3} 4, ﬁ’fm TSy ﬂi bl El
Component Units:
Parking 5 1,851 s 3,360 = - s 1,509
Ubspilal DB AR3,IRY 100402 380 457 65260 $ 442000
Total component unils 3 %_mﬂﬁ 3 IS E 49K T3 [EE7T] 3 4450 5 1.509
General revenues:
Taxes
Sales und use tax:s 5 16,658,759 5 - 5 16,658,759 H - 3 -
Franchise and public service oes 677,819 - 6T7.819 - -
Holelmotel texes 868,071 - 868,071 - -
EO1 tanes 541,612 - 541,612 - -
Invergovemmentul nevenue nul restricted Lo specific prognums 320,528 - 320,528 - -
Investmenl ncome 295,570 61,518 357488 73,599 -
Miscellancous 263,N0 71,639 337349 - -
Transfars from prmary government = - - 327225
Translers - nternal activity (e N} 2T - -
Total general revenues and Lransfers 19.351.75% MALRAT 15,761,626 1050 K24
Change m net postion 170099 5307253 [EET (IR 1,509
Net posilion - beginning lﬂ%&ls& 6470371 29, HN.%‘“J 5208002 6918
Net posilion - ending LT $ SmAn 3 TN E) 3 TRA

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Governmental Funds Balance Sheet - June 30, 2019

Special Debt Service
Economic Dedicated Other Total
Development Sales Tax - Bond Trustee 1 Gover
General Fund Reserve Fund Fund MPWA Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 809,481 $ 3,824,227 $ 2,208,407 $ 28,928 $ 5,860,352 § 6,118,134 3 18,951,528
Investments - - 253,708 - - - 253,708
Recelvables:
A t: ivable, net of all - - - - - 180,077 180,077
Due from other funds - - - - - 800,000 800,000
Due from other govemments 1,272,941 - - 534,479 - 539,148 2,346,568
Franchise tax raceivable 55,498 - - - - - 55,488
Court fines raceivable, net of allowance 1,188,368 - - - - - 1,168,388
A ivable, net of all 85,163 = - - - - 85,163
Other receivables 93,885 - - - - 41,415 135,300
Total assets § 3485337 S 3,824,227 $ 2463115 S 564,407 § 5,960.352 $ 7678774 5 238762
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND BALANCES
Liablfities:
Accounts payable $ 164,387 $ - $ 9,773 s 6,000 $ - £ 473,428 5 653,588
Accrued payroll Habllities 443,790 - 3,478 - - 20,886 477,254
Due to other funds 886,742 - - - - - 886,742
Uneamed revenue 7,761 - - - - - 7,761
Due to bondholders 1,681 - - - - - 1,881
Total llabllilies 1.504.351 = 13,251 6,000 - 503,414 2.027.026
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavallable revenue 1.158.843 - - - - 80,443 1,238,386
Fund balances:
Restricled - 3,824,227 455,403 558,407 5,960,352 6,002,573 16,800,962
Assigned 7,686 - 1,984,461 - - 1,082,344 3,084,481
Unassigned 814,347 - - - - - 814,347
Total fund balances 822,033 3,824,227 2448 Bt SSBA07 5,960,352 7,084,917 20,708,800

Total liabllities, deferred inflows and fund balances 5§ 3,485337 5 3,624,227 § 2483115 5 584,407 Ll 5.560.35_'4‘_ 5 TBI8 T4 5 2976212

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Reconciliation of Governmental Funds and Government-Wide Financial Statements:
Total fund balance, governmental funds $ 20,709,800

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different
because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds, net of accunulated depreciation of $66,184,525 41,481,519

Certain other long-term assets and deferred outflow s are not available to pay current
period expenditures and therefore are deferred or not reported in the funds:

Grants receivable 21,754
Court fines receivable, net of allow ance for doubtful accounts $1,523,299 1,105,383
Ambulance receivable, net of allow ance for doubtful accounts $2,280,657 42,084
Other receivable, net of allow ance for doubtful accounts $176,783 70,165
Pension related deferred outflow s 3,293,162
Deferred outflow on refunding 755,783
Net pension asset 371,422

5,659,753

Certain long-term assets are not a current financial resource and, therefore, are not
reported in the fund financial statement, but are included in the governmental activities of

the Statement of Net Position:
Restitution receivable 39,266
39,266
Certain long-term liabilities and related accounts, are not due and payable from current
financial resources and therefore, they, along w ith deferred inflow s, are not reported in
the funds:
Accrued interest payable (774,361)
Capital lease obligations payable (437,646)
Revenue bonds payable (46,544,339)
Accrued compensated absences (2,357,265)
Net pension liability (10,663,168)
Pension related deferred inflow s (1,493,405)
(62,270,184)
Net Position of Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position $ 5,620,154

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Year
Ended June 30, 2019

Special Debt Service
Economic Dedicated Other Total
Development Sales Tax - Bond Trustee | Gover tal
General Fund Reserve Fund Fund MPWA Fund Funds Funds

REVENUES
Taxes $ 10,288,791 $ - § - $4,173,145 $ - $ 4,284,325 § 18,746,261
Intergovemmental 1,852,133 - 158,000 - - 161,613 2,171,746
Charges for senices 1,334,227 - 60,000 - - 1,121,228 2,515,456
Fines and forfeitures 674,705 - - - - - 674,705
Licenses and permits 95,088 - - - - - 96,088
Investment eamings 40,520 56,745 38,335 2,435 100,278 56,658 295,970
Miscellaneous 153,930 - - - - 320,133 474,063

Total revenues 14,440,354 56,745 257,335 4,175,580 100,276 5,943,858 24,574,289
EXPENDITURES
Current:

Legislature 107,346 - - - - - 107,346

Administration 3,081,710 - - 12,500 - 19,338 3,113,548

Public safety 8,071,452 - - - - 745,602 8,817,054

Community senices 1,726,536 - - - - 710,871 2,437,507

Administraiive senices 652,081 - - - - 748,772 1,398,863

Heaith and welfare 284,427 - - - - - 284,427

Public works 946,927 - - - - - 946,927

Economic development - - 385,556 - - - 385,556
Capital Outlay 48,555 : - 45,838 - - 3,344,688 3,440,082
Debt Senice:

Principal - - - - 4,660,000 224,159 4,884,159

Interest and other charges - - - - 1,557,066 16,983 1,574,049

Total expenditures 14,920,044 - 441,384 12,500 6,217,066 5,808,514 27,399,518
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (479,650) 56,745 (184,059) 4,163,080 (6,116,780) 135,445 (2,425,229)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 1,775,255 - - 339,984 4,731,498 1,313,988 8,160,735
Transfers aut (1,161,681) - (214,544) (4,473,030) (45,761) (524,151) (6,419,167)
Payment to Cancer Center = = - - - (327,225) {(327,225)
Proceeds from long-lerm debt - - - - - 126,734 126,734
Total other financing sources and uses 613,574 - {214, 544) (4,133,046) 4 885737 588,356 1,541,077
Net change in fund balances 133,924 56,745 (398,603) 30,034 (1,431,053) 724,801 (884,152)
Fund balances - beginning 688,109 3,767,482 2,848,467 528,373 7,381,405 6,370,116 21,583,852
Fund balances - ending $ 822,033 § 3.824227 $ 2,440,864 $ 558,407 $ 5,960,352 §  7.094.817 § 20,708,800

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Reconciliation of Governmental Funds and Government-Wide Financial Statements:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds: $ (884,152)
Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are different

because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures w hile governmental activities
report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life of the assets:

Capital asset purchases capitalized 3,163,367
Capital assets purchased for business-type activities (1,884,332)
Depreciation expense (3,642,559)

(2,363,524)

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds:

Change in restitution revenue (10,684)
Change in unavailable revenue 180,583
169,899

In the Staterment of Activities, the cost of pension benefits earned net of employee
contributions is reported as an element of pension expense. The fund financial
statements report pension contributions as expenditures. 1,476,829

Debt praceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing
debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. Repayment of debt
principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-
term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position:

Debt proceeds (126,734)
Revenue bond principal payments 4,660,000
Accretion of capital appreciation revenue bonds (449,000)
Capital lease obligation principal payments 224,159

4,308,425

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental

funds:
Change in accrued interest expense 61,611
Amortization of deferred outflow on refunding (103,372)
Change in accrued compensated absences expenses 36,280
(5,481)
Change in net position of governmental activities $ 2,701,996

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Proprietary Funds Statement of Net Position - June 30, 2019

Enterprise Funds

McAlester
Public Works McAlester Internal Service
Authority Airport Authority Total Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,988,990 3 64,723 $ 3,053,713 $ 92,489
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 547,469 - 547,469 .
Due from other funds 255,475 - 255,475 98,755
Accounts receivable, net 1,278,758 7,839 1,286,597 -
Due from other govermments - 259,622 259,622 -
Total current assets 5,070,692 332,184 5,402,876 191,244
Noncurrent assets:
Investment in joint venture 2,063,840 - 2,063,840 -
Capital assets:
Land and other non-depreciable assets 1,570,333 42,364 1,612,697 -
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 22,299,112 8,058,235 30,357,347 -
Total noncurrent assets 25,933,285 8,100,599 34,033,884 -
Total assets 31,003,977 8,432,783 39,436,760 191,244
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 174,605 13,561 188,166 -
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 310,709 1,100 311,809 34,400
Accrued payroll liabilities 68,930 4,896 73,826 9,872
Due to other funds 12,013 255,475 267,488 -
Interest payable 1,758 - 1,758 -
Uneamed revenue 60,854 - 60,854 -
Claims liability - - - 11,692
Due to depositors 109,494 - 109,494 -
Notes payable 311,380 - 311,380 -
Water rights contract obligation 31,054 - 31,054 -
Accrued compensated absences 20,502 2,855 23,357 3,005
Total current liabilities 926,694 264,326 1,191,020 58,969
Noncurrent liabilities:
Claims liability - - - 105,232
Landfill closure and postclosure liability 4,307,416 - 4,307,416 -
Due to depositors 437,975 - 437,975 -
Notes payable 641,849 - 641,849 -
Water rights contract obligation - - - -
Accrued compensated absences 184,515 25,695 210,210 27,043
Net pension liability 859,615 65,946 925,561 -
Total non-current liabilities 6,431,370 91,641 6,523,011 132,275
Total liabilities 7,358,064 355,967 7,714,031 191,244
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 26,016 1,254 27,270 -
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 22,885,162 8,100,599 30,985,761 -
Unrestricted (deficit) 909,340 (11,476) 897,864 -
Total net position $ 23,794,502 $ 8,089,123 $ 31,883,625 $ -

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Proprietary Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Year Ended

June 30, 2019

Enterprise Funds

McAlester McAlester Internal
Public Works Airport Service
Authority Authority Total Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for senices:
Water $ 3,031,817 $ - $ 3,031,817 $ -
Sewer 1,562,854 - 1,562,854 -
Sanitation 2,694,695 - 2,694,695 -
Water taps 4,039 - 4,039 -
Sewer taps 6,850 - 6,850 -
Water districts 1,670,593 - 1,670,593 .
Landiill 2,345 - 2,345 -
Penalties 257,590 - 257,590 -
Recycle fees 37,729 - 37,729 -
Subtitle "D" fees 407,582 - 407,582 -
Airport rents and fees - 101,870 101,870 -
Self insurance charges - - - 672,100
Miscellaneous - - - 10,261
Total operating revenues 9,676,094 101,870 9,777,964 682,361
OPERATING EXPENSES
Utility office 513,791 - 513,791 -
Interdepartmental 859,801 - 859,801 -
Sanitation 1,967,363 - 1,967,363 -
Engineering 403,772 - 403,772 -
Sewer 770,374 - 770,374 -
Water 1,365,558 - 1,365,558 -
Utility maintenance 985,016 - 985,016 -
Landfill 94,016 - 94,016 -
Airport - 195,595 195,595 -
Fleet maintenance - - - 539,065
Claims expense - - - 143,296
Depreciation expense 1,671,996 561,238 2,233,234 -
Total operating expenses 8,631,687 756,833 9,388,520 682,361
Operating income (loss) 1,044,407 (654,963) 389,444 -
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 61,518 - 61,518 -
Interest expense and fiscal charges (38,961) (52) (39,013) -
Miscellaneous revenue 71,615 24 71,639 -
Gain on joint venture 136,936 - 136,936 -
Total non-operating revenue (expenses) 231,108 (28) 231,080 -
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 1,275,515 (654,991) 620,524 -
Capital contributions 1,848,667 4,679,630 6,528,297 -
Transfers in 352,630 411,705 764,335 -
Transfers out (2,505,903) - (2,505,903) -
Change in net position 970,909 4,436,344 5,407,253 -
Total net position - beginning 22,823,593 3,652,779 26,476,372 -
Total net position - ending $ 23,794,502 $ 8,089,123 $ 31,883,625 $ -

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Proprietary Funds Statement of Cash Flows - Year Ended June 30. 2019

Enterprise Funds

McAlester McAlester Internal
Puhlic Works Airport Service
Authority Authority ‘Total Funds
CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts [fom customers 5 9,667,870 $ 102,314 5 9,770,684 s -
Payments to suppliers (5,114,039) (48,852) (5,162,891) (385,869)
Payments o ermployees (2,011,065) (144,802) (2,155.867) (279,150)
Receipis of cuslomer meter deposils 122,143 - 122143 -
Refund of customer meter deposits (106,545) - (106,545) -
Other receipls - - - 690,851
Other payments (35,725) 255,499 219774 -
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activilies 2,522,639 164,659 2,687,258 25832
CASHFLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Trans [ers fromother funds 352,630 411,705 764,335 -
Trens(ers Lo other funds (2,505,903) - {2,505,903) -
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Noncapital Financing Aclivities (2.153.273) 411,705 (1.741.568) -
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of capital assels (7,020) (4,910,747) (4,917,767) -
Proceeds fromcapilal grant - 4,384,343 4,384,343 -
Proceeds fromissuance of debt 140,165 - 140,165 -
Principal payment of capital debt (313.637) (40,874) (354.511) -
Interest and fiscal charges paid on capital debt (38,841) (129) (3B.965) -
Nel Cash Provided by (Used in) Capilal and Related Financing Activities {219,333) (567,402) (786.735) -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVES TING ACTIVITIES
Interest end dividends 61,518 - 61.518 -
Nel Cash Provided by Investing Activities 61.518 - 61.518 -
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 211,551 8,962 220,513 25,832
Balances - beginning of the year 3,324,908 55,761 3380604 66,657
Balances - end of the year $ 3,536,459 $ 64,723 $ 3,601.182 $ 92.489
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided
hy operating activities:
Operaling income (loss) 8 1,044,407 $  (654,963) 5 389,444 8 -
Adjustments o reconcile operating income (loss) 10 nel cash provided by
operaling activities:
Depreciation expense 1,671,996 561,238 2233234 -
Other perating (exp ) 208,551 24 208,575 -
Change in assels and liabilities:
Receivables, net (9.682) 944 (8.738) -
Due from other funds (255.475) - (255.475) 8,490
Invesiment in joint venture (137,936) - (137.936) -
Deferred amounts related to pensions 46,536 4,675 51,211 -
Accounts payable 55,361 (867) 54,494 27971
Accrued payroll liabilities 13,967 556 14523 952
Due 1o olher funds 11,199 255475 266.674 -
Clains liability - - - (8,490)
Uneamed revenue 1,458 - 1,458 -
Due lo depositors 15,598 - 15,598 -
Landfill closure liability (104,997) - (104,997) -
Nel pension liability (46,364) (4.316) (50,680) -
Accrued compensaled absences 8.020 1,893 9.913 (3.091)
Nel Cash Provided by Operating Activities § 2522639 5 164,659 5 2.687.298 $ 25,832
Noncash capital and related financing activities:
Capilal assels contributed from governmental funds S 1R48.667 s 35.665 s 1.584332 5 -

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Statement of Fiduciary Net Position — Pension Trust Fund - June 30, 2019

Defined Benefit
Retirement Plan
and Trust Fund

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 124,882
Investments:
Certificates of deposit 230,042
Corporate bonds 511,734
Exchange-traded closed-end funds 888,649
Mortgage and asset backed securities 556,136
Govemment treasury securities 309,926
Mutual funds 1,647,893
Common stocks 9,251,963
Interest receivable 12,514
Total assets 13,533,739

NET POSITION
Net position restricted for pensions $ 13,533,739

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position — Pension Trust Fund - Year Ended June 30, 2019

Defined Benefit
Retirement Plan
and Trust Fund

ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer $ 427,843
Reimbursements 65
Total contributions 427,908

Investment income:

Interest income 381,460
Add realized and unrealized net gain on investments 247,955
Net investment income 629,415
Total additions 1,057,323
DEDUCTIONS
Benefits paid to participants or beneficiaries 1,213,398
Administrative expenses 118,720
Total deductions 1,332,118
Change in net position held in trust for employees’ pension benefits (274,795)
Net position - beginning 13,808,534
Net position - ending $ 13,533,739

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Footnotes to the Basic Financial Statements:
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. Financial Reporting Entity

The City’s financial reporting entity includes the primary government (City of McAlester), four blended
component units, and two discretely presented component units as noted below.

In determining the financial reporting entity, the City complies with the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14, as amended by GASB Statement No. 61, “The Financial
Reporting Entity” and includes all component units for which the City is financially accountable.

The City of McAlester — operates the public safety, health and welfare, streets and highways, parks
and recreation, stormwater and administrative activities.

The City of McAlester is an incorporated municipality with a population of approximately 18,400 located
in southeast Oklahoma. The City operates under the Council-Manager form of government and operates
under a charter that provides for three branches of government:

e Legislative — the City Council is a seven-member governing body. Mayor is elected by the
citizens at large and other six members are elected by ward.

e Executive — the City Manager is the Chief Executive Officer and is appointed by the City Council

e Judicial — the Municipal Judge is a practicing attorney appointed by the City Manager, confirmed
by the City Council.

The City provides typical municipal services such as public safety, health and welfare, street and alley
maintenance, parks and recreation, economic development, certain utility services including water,
wastewatet, sanitation, and airport activities.

Component Units:

Because the component units are financially accountable to the City, the City’s governing body serves as
the trustees for these public trusts, and they are all managed by the same management team of the City,
when active, the following component units are blended into the City’s primary government presentation
as funds of the primary government for reporting purposes:

The McAlester Public Works Authority — operates the water, wastewater, and sanitation/landfill
activities of the City, with the McAlester City Council serving as trustees of the Authority.

The McAlester Airport Authority — develops and operates the airport with the McAlester City Council
serving as trustees of the Authority.

The McAlester National Defense & Industrial Development Authority — promotes the development of
industry and culture and industrial, manufacturing, cultural and education activities, with the McAlester
City Council serving as trustees of the Authority. This trust would be reported as a blended component
unit, but currently has no financial activity.
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The McAlester Economic Development Authority — an inactive trust that promotes economic
development and growth, with the McAlester City Council serving as trustees of the Authority. This trust
would be reported as a blended component unit, but currently has no financial activity.

Component units that are discretely presented in the City’s report in a separate column are presented
below:

The McAlester Regional Health Center Authority — operates to finance and develop the health center
facilities of the City. Separate audited component unit financial statements are issued by the Regional
Health Center Authority and may be obtained at their administrative offices.

The McAlester Parking Authority (MPA) — operates to furnish and supply public off-street parking
services and facilities. The MPA does not issue separate audited component unit financial statements.

All 6 of the above component units are Public Trusts established pursuant to Title 60 of Oklahoma State
law. Public Trusts (Authorities) have no taxing power. The Authorities are generally created to finance
City services through issuance of revenue bonds or other non-general obligation debt and to enable the
City Council to delegate certain functions to the governing body (Trustees) of the Authority. In
accordance with state law, all debt obligations incurred by public trusts require 2/3 approval by the City
Council. In addition, the City may have also leased certain existing assets at the creation of the
Authorities to the Trustees on a long-term basis. The City, as beneficiary of the Public Trusts, receives
title to any residual assets when a Public Trust is dissolved.

Joint Venture:

Association for Landfill Financial Assurance (ALFA) — A non-profit Oklahoma corporation organized
for the exclusive benefit of cities, towns, counties, solid waste districts and public trusts within the State
of Oklahoma that own and/or operate municipal solid waste landfills within the jurisdiction of the State of
Oklahoma, including the making and management of investments on behalf of such public entities in
order to provide the financial assurances as required by Subtitle D of the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act of 1976.

B. Basis of Presentation and Accounting
Government-Wide Financial Statements:

The statements of net position and activities are reported on the accrual basis of accounting and economic
resources measurement focus. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses (including depreciation and amortization) are recorded when the liability is incurred
or economic asset used. In accordance with the economic resources measurement focus, all assets and
liabilities, both current and noncurrent are reported, along with any related deferred outflows and deferred
inflows.

Program revenues within the statement of activities that are derived directly from each activity or from
parties outside the City’s taxpayers are reported as program revenues. The City has the following
program revenues in each activity:

o Administration — oil and gas leases, rent, hotel/motel charges for services, and capital and
operating grants and contributions
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o Public safety — Fire and Police — fines and forfeitures, fire run charges, ambulance revenue, and

capital and operating grants and contributions

e Community services — cemetery openings and closings, swimming pool revenues, complex

concessions and rentals, and capital and operating grants and contributions

o Administration services — abatements and licenses and permits

e Health and welfare — nutrition operating grant

e Public works — gas excise and vehicle tax shared by the State and street cuts
o Stormwater — stormwater fees

All other governmental revenues are reported as general. All taxes are classified as general revenue even
if restricted for a specific purpose.

Governmental Funds:

The City’s governmental funds are comprised of the following:

Major Funds:

General Fund — accounts for general operations of the City including: public safety, parks,
public facilities, and street maintenance.

Reserve Fund — special revenue fund that maintains 10% of the total operating budget
including capital improvements to be used for emergencies as determined by council.

Economic Development Fund — special revenue fund that accounts for revenue received from
a sales tax (1/4 of one-cent) approved by the voters, rental income, and grants to be used for
financing debt related to economic development and for future economic development
projects. The 1/4 of one-cent sales tax ended July 1, 2018.

Dedicated Sales Tax MPWA — debt service fund that accounts for revenue received from a
sales tax (one-cent) approved by the voters to be used for financing debt related to capital
improvements.

Bond Trustee Fund — debt service fund that accounts for transfers received from other funds
to be used for financing non business-type activity revenue bond debt.

Aggregated Non-Major Funds (reported as Other Governmental Funds):

Special Revenue Funds:

Juvenile Fine Fund — accounts for revenues from fines restricted by state for juvenile
programs.

Tourism / SE Expo Fund — accounts for revenues of a hotel/motel tax levy and
rentals/concessions to be expended for promotion of tourism.

E-911 Fund — accounts for E-911 revenues legally restricted for E-911 services.

Gifts & Contributions Fund — accounts for revenues and expenditures of donor restricted
monies.

Stormwater Fund — accounts for revenues of a stormwater fee to be expended solely for
stormwater projects.
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e MRHC-Cancer Center Fund — accounts for revenue received from a sales tax (1/8 of one-
cent) approved by the voters to be used for constructing a cancer treatment center.

Capital Project Funds:

e Police Equipment Fund — accounts for revenues and capital expenditures related to Local
Law Enforcement Block Grants.

e State Forfeiture Fund — accounts for revenues received from state drug forfeitures restricted
for equipment purchases.

e Cemetery Perpetual Care — accounts for 12.5% of all cemetery revenues which are legally
restricted for cemetery capital outlay.

e CDBG Grants Fund — accounts for revenues and capital expenditures related to CDBG
grants.

e Federal Forfeiture Fund — Accounts for revenues received from federal drug forfeitures
restricted for equipment purchases.

e Fire Improvement Grant Fund — accounts for revenues and capital expenditures related to fire
grants.

e Capital Improvement Plan Fund — capital project fund that accounts for monies initially set
aside by City Council for repayment of previously determined unsupportable bond activity.

e Technology Fund — accounts for revenues received from a technology fee, one-half of which
is restricted for technology capital purchases and upgrades.

e Infrastructure Fund — accounts for revenues received from a sales tax (1/2 of one-cent)
approved by the voters and a technology fee, one-half of which is restricted for funding
repairs, maintenance, construction and improvements to City infrastructure, including but not
limited to capital improvements to water and sewer infrastructure, streets, roadways, and
other public facilities.

Debt Service Fund:

e Sales Tax Schools Fund — accounts for revenue received from sales tax (1/4 of one-cent
through 7-1-18, 1/8 of one-cent effective 10-1-18) approved by the voters to be used for
acquisition and financing of a new early childhood center & safe rooms at the school.

The governmental funds are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting and current financial
resources measurement focus. On the modified accrual basis of accounting revenues are recorded when
earned and measurable and available to pay current financial obligations, while expenditures are
recorded when incurred and normally payable from current financial resources. The City defines
revenue availability as collected within 60 days of period end.

The reconciliation of the governmental funds financial statements to the governmental activities
presentation in the government-wide financial statements is the result of the use of the economic
resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting at the government-wide level.

Proprietary Funds:

When the City charges customers for the services it provides, these services are generally reported in
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds include enterprise funds and internal service funds. Enterprise funds
are used to account for business-like activities provided to the general public. Internal service funds are
used to account for business-type activities provided within the government. Proprietary funds are
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reported on the accrual basis of accounting and economic resources measurement focus. For example,
proprietary fund capital assets are capitalized and depreciated and principal payments on long-term debt
are recorded as a reduction to the liability.

The City’s enterprise funds include the following major funds:

e McAlester Public Works Authority Fund - that accounts for the activities of the McAlester
Public Works Authority public trust in providing water, sewer, and sanitation services to the
public.

e McAlester Airport Authority Fund - that currently accounts for airport fees and grants used in
providing airport services.

The City’s internal service funds include the following:

e Worker’s Compensation Fund — that accounts for the activities of providing worker’s
compensation to the employees of the City.

e FLEET Maintenance Fund — that accounts for the activities of providing FLEET maintenance
to the City.

For purposes of the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position, operating revenues
and expenses are considered those whose cash flows are related to operating activities, while revenues
and expenses related to financing, capital and investing activities are reported as non-operating or
transfers and contributions.

Fiduciary Fund:

The City has one fiduciary fund - the City of McAlester Defined Benefit Retirement Plan and Trust Fund.
The pension trust fund accounts for retirement contributions and investment income for the direct benefit
of employees other than those employees covered by the statewide fire and police cost-sharing pension
plans, or those covered by the City’s defined contribution agent multi-employer OMRF pension plan. The
pension trust fund is reported on the accrual basis of accounting and economic resources measurement
focus.

C. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

For the purposes of the statements of net position, balance sheets, and statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes all demand and savings accounts, certificates of deposit, and short-term
investments with an original maturity of three-months or less, and money market investments.
Investments consist of long-term time deposits, and U.S. agency bonds and notes. Certificates of deposit
are reported at cost while investments in the U.S. agency bonds and notes and other marketable
investments are reported at fair value.

D. Inventories
Inventories of goods and supplies on hand at year end are not material for the primary government.

Therefore purchases of inventory type items are recorded as expenditures or expenses at the time
purchased, and no balances for such inventories on hand are reported.
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For the Regional Health Center Authority component unit reported inventories are reported on the lower
of cost (first-in, first-out) or market.

E. Capital Assets and Depreciation

The accounting treatment of property, plant and equipment (capital assets) depends on whether the assets
are used in governmental fund type or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the
government-wide or fund financial statements. In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements, property, plant and equipment are accounted for as capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation where applicable. In the governmental fund financial statements, capital assets acquired are
accounted for as capital outlay expenditures and not reported as capital assets.

Capital assets consist of land, land improvement, construction in progress, buildings and building
improvements, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure. A capitalization threshold of $2,500 is used
for additions, other than land, to report capital assets. Capital assets are reported at actual or estimated
historical cost. Prior to July 1, 2001, governmental activities’ infrastructure assets were not capitalized.
These assets have been valued at estimated historical cost. Donated assets are recorded at their
acquisition value at the date of donation.

Depreciable capital assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over useful lives. The range of estimated
useful lives by type of asset is as follows:

¢ Buildings 20 — 100 years
o Improvements other than buildings 20 - 100 years
e Equipment and vehicles 3 - 25 years

e Infrastructure 15 - 50 years

F. Long-Term Debt

Accounting treatment of long-term debt varies depending upon the source of repayment and the
measurement focus applied and whether the debt is reported in the government-wide or fund financial
statements. -

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental activities, business-type activities, proprietary fund
and component unit resources are reported as liabilities as incurred. The long-term debt consists
primarily of accrued compensated absences, capital leases payable, and revenue bonds payable. This
long-term debt is reported net of unamortized premiums and discounts.

Long-term debt of governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund financial statements. The
debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources and payment of principal and interest reported as
expenditures.

G. Compensated Absences

Under terms of union contracts and City personnel policies, City employees are granted comp time,
vacation and sick leave in varying amounts. In the event of termination, an employee is paid for
accumulated vacation and comp time. The estimated liabilities for vested benefits also include salary-
related payments such as employment taxes. Compensated absences are reported as accrued in the
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government-wide, proprietary, fiduciary and component unit financial statements. Governmental funds
report only the matured compensated absences payable to currently terminating or retiring employees.

H. Fund Balances and Net Position
Net Position:

Net position reported in the government-wide, proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements
are displayed in three components:

a. Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets including capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or
other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvements of those assets.

b. Restricted net position - Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by 1)
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments, or
2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

c. Unrestricted net position - All other net position that does not meet the definition of “restricted”
or “net investment in capital assets.”

It is the City’s policy to first use restricted net position prior to the use of unrestricted net position when
an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available.

Fund Statements:

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further classified as nonspendable,
restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. These classifications are defined as:

a. Nonspendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable
form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

b. Restricted — consists of fund balance with constraints place on the use of resources either by 1)
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or 2)
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

C. Committed — includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal action of the city’s highest level of decision-making authority. The City’s highest level
of decision-making authority is made by ordinance. The City currently reports no committed fund balance.

d. Assigned — includes amounts that are constrained by the city’s intent to be used for specific
purposes but are neither restricted nor committed. Assignments of fund balance may be made by city
council action or management decision when the city council has delegated that authority. Currently, the
city council has delegated that authority to the city manager. Assignments for transfers and interest income
for governmental funds are made through the budgetary process.

€. Unassigned — represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and has not been
restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund.
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It is the City’s policy to first use restricted fund balance prior to the use of unrestricted fund balance when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance are available. The
City’s policy for the use of unrestricted fund balance amounts require that committed amounts would be
reduced first, followed by assigned amounts and then unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred
for purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used. The
only exception to this policy is for assigned interest income in governmental funds other than the General
Fund. In those funds, interest income is used first before other revenues. Proprietary fund and fiduciary
fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide statements.

L. Interfund Activities and Balances

The City’s policy is to eliminate interfund transfers and balances in the statement of activities and net
position to avoid the grossing up of balances. Only the residual balances transferred between
governmental and business-type activities are reported as internal transfers and internal balances then
offset in the total column in the government-wide statements. Internal transfers and balances between
funds are not eliminated in the fund financial statements

J. Use of Estimates

Certain estimates are made in the preparation of the financial statements, such as estimated lives for
capital assets depreciation. Estimates are based on management’s best judgments and may vary from
actual results.

2. Deposits and Investments

Primary Government Deposits and Investments:

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair
value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets identical assets; Level 2 inputs are

significant other observable inputs. The valuations for Level 2 measurements are determined using quoted
prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.
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At June 30, 2019, the primary government held the following deposits and investments:

Maturitics i Years

Carrying On luss Mo

Tope of Deposits and Investments = Primary Governiment Value Demand Than One |-5 G6-10 Than 10
Deposils:
Pelty Cash -3 510 § 510 5 - 5 . 3 B 5
Demand deposits 16,679,738 16,679,738 - -
Demand deposits - pension Lrust funds 124,882 124,882 -
Tinw deposits 253,708 - - 253.708
Time deposits - pension trust funds UMY - 230443 -
17.203.481 16,409,730 230043 253,708
Credit Fair Value
Rating Categories.
Investmenls
Bond Trustee Accounts:
Federated Treasury Obligations Inst Money Markel Fund NIA NA ]! I
Federated Treasury Obligations Svc Money Market Fund N/A N/A 1,113,066 1,113,066
Federated Governmenl Obligations TaxManaged Sve NA N/A 1,186,967 1.186,967
Goldman Sachs Financial Square Federal Fund Admun Shares #521 AAAmM N/A 3,660,308 3,660,308
Pension Trust Fund
Westem Asset Smash: Senes EC (LMECX) - Money Market NIA N/A 572,557 572,557 - - -
Western Asset Smash: Series € (LMLCX) - Money Murket N/A N/A 211,114 211,114
Westem Assct Smash: Scries M (LMSMX) - Money Market N/A N/A 631,017 631,017
Tnveseo Premer Pif Instl (IPPXX) - Money Market N/IA N/A 233,205 233,205 -
Corporale Bonds AAA Levelll 60,098 - - - G0,098
Corporale Bonds AA- Level 1l 42,950 - - - 42,950 -
Corporale Bonds A- Level Il 191,473 - - - 88,679 102,794
Corporate Bonds BBB+ Level T 217,213 - - - 99,389 117.824
Vanguard Short Term Bond N/A LevelT KR,648 ANB,648 - - . -
Uniled Slates Treasury Bonds/Notes AAA Levell 309,926 - . 33,270 . 276,656
Mortgage and asset backed secuntics N/A Levelll 556,136 - - - - 556,136
Common Stocks N/A Level 9,251,963 9.251.963 - - - -
19,120,652 | 7748856 - 33270 231018 1.013.508
Total Deposits and Investments S 3GANLIZE 5 GLASESRG 3 230,043 $ 286978 § 231018 $ 1113508
Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
Cosh ond cash equivalents $ 22645200
Investments 253,708
Add Fiduciary Fund cash and cash cquivalents 124,842
Add: Fiduciary Fund investments 13,396,343

§ 36,420,133

Deposit and Investment Risks

Custodial Credit Risk — Exposure to custodial credit risk related to deposits exists when the City holds
deposits that are uninsured and uncollateralized; collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution, or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name; or collateralized
without a written or approved collateral agreement. Exposure to custodial credit risk related to
investments exists when the City holds investments that are uninsured and unregistered, with securities
held by the counterparty or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name.

The City does not have a formal investment policy as it relates to custodial credit risk. Acceptable
collateral is limited to U.S. Treasury securities and direct debt obligations of municipalities, counties, and
school districts in the State of Oklahoma. As required by Federal 12 U.S.C.A., Section 1823(e), all
financial institutions pledging collateral to the City must have a written collateral agreement approved by
the board of directors or loan committee.

At June 30, 2019, the City was not exposed to custodial credit risk as defined above.
Investment Credit Risk — State law limits the investments available to the City and is described below.
a. Direct obligations of the U. S. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities to which the full faith and credit

of the U.S. Government is pledged, or obligations to the payment of which the full faith and credit of the State
of Oklahoma is pledged.
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b. Certificates of deposit or savings accounts that are either insured or secured with acceptable collateral with in-
state financial institutions, and fully insured certificates of deposit or savings accounts in out-of-state financial
institutions.

c.  With certain limitation, negotiable certificates of deposit, prime bankers acceptances, prime commercial paper
and repurchase agreements with certain limitations.

d. County, municipal or school district tax supported debt obligations, bond or revenue anticipation notes, money
judgments, or bond or revenue anticipation notes of public trusts whose beneficiary is a county, municipality or
school district.

e. Notes or bonds secured by mortgage or trust deed insured by the Federal Housing Administrator and debentures
issued by the Federal Housing Administrator, and in obligations of the National Mortgage Association.

f.  Money market funds regulated by the SEC and in which investments consist of the investments mentioned in
the previous paragraphs a., b., c. and d.

Investment credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterpart to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The City has no formal policy limiting investments based on credit rating, but discloses any
such credit risk associated with their investments by reporting the credit quality ratings of investments in
debt securities as determined by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations—rating agencies—
as of the year end in the schedule above. Unless there is information to the contrary, obligations of the
U.S. government or obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government are not considered to have
credit risk and do not require disclosure of credit quality.

Retirement Plan Investments:

The Plan’s investment policies provide for investment in a diversified portfolio, consisting primarily of
common stocks, mutual funds, bonds, cash equivalents, and other investments. General asset allocation
guidelines for the Plan are as follows:

Class Maximum Percent Minimum Percent Target Percent
Domestic Equities 44.00 30.00 42.00
International Equities 16.00 0.00 8.00
Fixed Income 70.00 40.00 N/A
Cash 30.00 0.00 N/A

However, Morgan Stanley, the portfolio manager, has discretion in the actual allocation of assets within
the retirement plan portfolio.

Investment Interest Rate Risk — Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely
affect the fair value of an investment. The City does not have a formal investment policy to manage
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The City discloses its exposure to
interest rate risk by disclosing the maturity dates of its various investments in the schedule above.

Concentration of Investment Credit Risk - Exposure to concentration of credit risk is considered to exist
when investments in any one issuer represent a significant percent of total investments of the City (any
over 5% are disclosed). Investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government and
investments in mutual funds, external investment pools, and other pooled investments are excluded from
this consideration. The City’s investment policy requires diversification of investments and indicates that,
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with the exception of U.S. Treasury securities and authorized pools, there was no single issuer investment
with more than 5% of total investments.

Restricted Cash and Investments — The amounts reported as restricted assets on the statement of net

position are comprised of the following:
Current

Cash and cash
Equivalents

Utility Deposits $ 547,469

Total Restricted Assets $ 547469

Component Units Deposits and Investments:

McAlester Regional Health Center Authority

Deposits
At June 30, 2019, none of the Authority’s bank balances of approximately $22,150,000 were exposed to
custodial credit risk as uninsured and uncollateralized. This amount excludes deposits held by the

Authority’s blended component units with bank balances of approximately $1,351,000.

As nongovernmental entities, the blended component units are not subject to collateralization
requirements. At June 30, 2019, the blended component units’ cash accounts exceeded federally insured
limits by approximately $763,000.

Maturities in Years

Fair Less More
Type of Deposits and Inves tments - MRHC Component Unit Value Than One 1-5 6-10 Than 10
Corporate Bonds $ 1,441,431 $ 51,162 $ 1,281,531 3 108,738 $ -
United States Treasury Bonds/Notes 1,180,502 - 398,804 781,698 -
Money market mutual finds 5,399,076 5,399,076 - - -
8,021,009 5,450,238 1,680,335 890,436
Exchange-traded funds 2,440,747
Corporate stocks 1,103,413
Accrued interest 40,299

$ 11,605468

3. Investment in Joint Venture

As discussed in Note 1A, the City participates (with equity interest) in the Association for Landfill
Financial Assurance (ALFA). ALFA has been approved by the ODEQ as an allowable financial
assurance mechanism under existing federal and state laws and regulations. As a member of ALFA, the
City is required to deposit certain amounts on an annual basis into an escrow fund to be pooled with other
ALFA members. The annual amount due from each member is based on the members’ total estimated
current cost of closure and post-closure care of the landfill, including adjustments due to inflation or
resulting from any changes in the closure or the required 30 year post-closure care plan, plus any
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additional amount for contingencies as determined by ALFA. For the year ended June 30, 2019, the

“Investment in joint venture” balance changed as follows:
Beginning Investment in Joint Venture
Current Year Contributions
Gain from Joint Venture

Ending Investment in Joint Venture

$ 1,925,904
1,000

136,936

$ 2,063,840

Separate annual financial statements are issued by ALFA and may be obtained from their administrative

offices at 3414 East 85" Place, Tulsa, Oklahoma, 74137.

4. Receivables

Primary Government Accounts Receivables:

Accounts receivable of the business-type activities consists of customers utilities, airport rental accounts
receivable, and airport grant receivable. Accounts receivable of the governmental activities consists of
stormwater fees, technology fees, police fines, and ambulance receivables. Receivables detail at June 30,

2019, is as follows:

General Fund
Stormmwater Technology Infrastructure
Ambulance Court Fund Fund Fund MPWA Airport
Accounts receivable $ 2,365,820 $ 2691667 $ 150236 § 103312 $§ 103312 § 3577953 $ 7,839
Allowance for doubtful accounts (2,280,657) (1.523,299) (73,471) (51,656) (51,656) (2,299,195) -
Accounts receivable, net $ 85,163 $ 1168368 S 76,765 S 51,656 $ 51,656 $ 1,278,758 s 7,839
Component Units:
McAlester Regional Health Center Authority
Patient receivable balances at June 30, 2019 were as follows:
MRHCA

Medicare $ 5,307,233

Medicaid 2,200,904

Other third-party payers 11,417,706

Patients 15,978,152

Allowance for doubtful accounts (20,052,176)

Accounts receivable, net $
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5. Capital Assets and Depreciation

For the year ended June 30, 2019, capital assets balances changed as follows:

Balance at Balance at
June 30,2018 Additions Disposals June 30,2019
Governmental activities:
Non-depreciable:
Land $ 1,803,086 $ - $ - $ 1,803,086
Construction-in-progress 563,449 730,008 (592 048) 701,409
Total non-depreciable assets at historical cost 2.366,535 730,008 (592,048) 2,504 495
Depreciable:
Buildings 12,477,174 - - 12,477,174
Other improvements 4,350,509 610,115 - 4,960,624
Machinery and equipment 10,899,657 530,960 (20,269) 11,410,348
Infrastructure 76,313,403 - - 76,313,403
Total depreciable assets at historical cost 104,040,743 1,141,075 (20,269) 105,161,549
Less accurmulated depreciation
Buildings (4,122,122) (305,139) - (4,427.261)
Other improvements (2,100,853) (305,574) - (2,406,427)
Machinery and equipment (8,251,083) (795,367) 20,269 (9,026,181)
Infrastructure (48,088,177 (2.236479) - (50,324,656)
Total accumulated depreciation (62,562,235) (3.642,559) 20,269 (66,184.525)
Net depreciable assets 41,478,508 (2,501,484) - 38.977.024
Govemmental activies capital assets, net $ 43,845,043 $ (1,771476) $ (592,048) $ 41481519
Business-type activities
Non-depreciable:
Land $ 212,571 $ - $ - $ 212,571
Water rights contracls 719,075 - - 719,075
Construction-in-progress 1,141,969 6,485,883 (6,946,801) 681,051
Total non-depreciable assets at historical cost 2,073,615 6,485,883 (6,946,801) 1,612,697
Depreciable:
Buildings 2,773,061 - - 2,773,061
Other improvements 7,024,578 286,558 - 7,311,136
Machinery and equipment 4,186,457 162,398 - 4,348,855
Utility property 48,229,166 6,814,061 - 55,043227
Total depreciable assets at historical cost 62,213,262 7,263,017 - 69,476,279
Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings (1,793,358) (68,599) - (1,861,957)
Other improvements (3,320,612) (570,538) - (3,891,150)
Machinery and equipment (3,106,067) (321,582) - (3,427,649)
Utility property (28,665,661) (1,272,515) - (29,938,176)
Total accumulated depreciation (36,885,698) (2,233,234) - (39,118,932)
Net depreciable assets 25327 564 5,029,783 - 30,357,347
Business-type capital assets, net $ 27,401,179 $ 11,515,666 $  (6,946,801) $ 31,970,044
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Component Unit (MRHCA ):
Non-depreciable:
Land
Construction-in-progress
Total non-depreciable assets at historical cost
Depreciable:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Total depreciable assets at historical cost
Less accurmulated depreciation
Land improvements
Buildings and improverments
Machinery and equipment
Total accurmulated depreciation

Net depreciable assets

Component Unit (MRHCA) capital assets, net

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2018 Additions Transfers Disposals June 30, 2019
$ 1,059,793 $ - 3 122,996 S - $ 1,182,789

14,890,524 3,850,761 (14,449.251) (1,188,883) 3,103,151
15,950,317 3,850,761 (14,326.255) (1,188,883) 4,285,940

1,630,354 - 87,333 - 1,717,687

52,872,137 957,357 13,030,836 - 66,860,330

35.219.894 1,856,442 1,208,086 (16,093} 38,268,329

89.722,385 2,813,799 14,326,255 (16,093) 106,846,346
(1,331,974) (43,144) - - (1,375,118)
(34,969,170) (2,307,186) - - (37,276,356)
(26,906,053) (2,403,197) - 14,630 (29,294,620)
(63,207,197) (4,753,527) - 14,630 (67,946,094)

26,515,188 (1,939,728) 14 326,255 (1.463) 38.900.252

5 42,465,505 § 1911033 5 - $ (1,190.346) $ 43,186,192

Depreciation of capital assets is included in total expenses and is charged or allocated to the activities
primarily benefiting from the use of the specific asset. Depreciation expense has been allocated as

follows:

Depreciation expense charged to govemmental activities:

Administration
Public safety

Community services

Public works

Total governmental activities depreciation expense

$ 330,124
414,531
478,696

2,419,208

S 3605

Depreciation expense charged to business-type activities:

Water
Sewer
Sanitation
Airport

Total business-type activities depreciation expense
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6. Long-Term Debt and Debt Service Requirements

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the reporting entity’s long-term debt changed as follows:

Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within
June 30, 2018 Additions Deductions June 30, 2019 One Year
Governmental Activities:

Capital Lease Obligations $ 535,071 $ 126,734 $ 224,159 $ 437,646 $ 197,089
Revenue Bonds Pay able-private placement 43,250,000 - 4,660,000 38,590,000 3,145,000
Revenue Bonds Pay able 7,505,339 449,000 - 7,954,339 -
Accrued Compensated Absences 2,426,684 132,149 171,520 2,387,313 238,731
Claims Liability 125,414 143,296 151,786 116,924 11,692
Total Governmental Long-Term Debt $ 53,842,508 $ 851,179 § 5207465 § 49486,222 $ 3,592,512

Net pension liability 10,663,168

$ 60,149,390

———————————
Business-type Activities:

Landfill Closure and Post-closure Liability $ 4,412,413 $ - $ 104,997 3 4,307,416 $ -
Due to Depositors 531,871 122,143 106,545 547,469 109,494
Notes Payable-direct borrowing 1,137,305 140,165 324,241 953,229 311,380
Water Contract Obligations 61,324 - 30,270 31,054 31,054
Accrued Compensated Absences 223,654 24,810 14,897 233,567 23,357
Total Business-ty pe Long-Term Debt $ 6,366,567 3 287,118 $ 580,950 $ 6,072,735 § 475285

Net pension liability 925,561

$ 6,998,296
— o

Note: The General Fund, Tax and Tourism Fund and E-911 Fund have typically been used to liquidate

governmental liability for compensated absences in prior years.

Governmental activities long-term debt:

Unless otherwise indicated, the governmental activities long-term debt obligations are generally paid

from the General Fund.

Capital Lease Obligations:

$100,133 capital lease with First National Bank for four vehicles, payable in monthly
installments of $1,840, final payment due April 23, 2024, with interest
at 3.90%, paid from the Capital Improvement Plan Fund

$96,999

$181,068 capital lease with John Deere Financial for loader, payable in monthly
installments of $1,822, final payment of $92,804 due January 10, 2020, with interest
at 3.0%, paid from the Capital Improvement Plan Fund
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$84,299 capital lease with Welch State Bank for 2015 dump truck, payable in monthly
installments of $1,518, final payment due March 24, 2020, with interest
at 3.08%, paid from the Capital Improvement Plan Fund 13,438

$141,910 capital lease with Welch State Bank for 2015 dump truck, payable in monthly
installments of $2,556, final payment due April 6, 2020, with interest
at 3.08%, paid from the Capital Improvement Plan Fund 25,324

$26,601 capital lease with First National Bank for one vehicle, payable in monthly
installments of $489, final payment due March 1, 2024, with interest
at 3.90%, paid from the Capital Improvement Plan Fund 25,000

$238,734 capital lease with Arvest Bank for 2017 street sweeper, payable in monthly
installments of $3,284, final payment due May 1, 2024, with interest

at 4.19%, paid from the Stormwater Fund 174.854
$ 437,646

Capital Lease Obligations:
Current portion _ $ 197,089
Noncurrent portion 240,557
Total Capital Lease Obligations $ 437.646

Revenue Bonds Payable:

2002 Series Utility System Revenue Bonds:
Capital appreciation bonds in the face amount of $3,037,176 dated July 1, 2003, issued by
McA lester Public Works Authority and used for streets, secured by utility revenue and
pledged sales tax, principal maturing at the accreted value of $17,560,000, interest rate at
4.30%, final maturity February 1, 2034. Interest is accreted (or added to the principal
balance) until maturity, at which time, the entire principal balance of $17,560,000 will be

due and payable. $17,560,000
Less: Unaccreted portion (9.605.661)
Principal outstanding at year end $7,954.339

Revenue Bonds Payable (Private Placements):

2012 Taxable Series Utility System & Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Notes:
Serial Bonds in the amount of $26,120,000 dated December 28, 2012, issued by McAlester
Public Works Authority and used for streets, secured by utility revenues and pledged sales tax,
principal maturing semi-annually ranging from $85,000 to $1,275,000, interest rate at 3.8%,
final maturity February 1, 2027, paid from Bond Trustee Fund. In the event of default, the
lender may: 1) accelerate maturity; 2) gain control of operations through temporary trustees;
3) file suit for specific performance of covenants; 4) file suit to enforce or enjoin action or
inaction of parties under provisions of the note or sales tax agreement. $17,090,000
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Revenue Bonds Payable (Private Placements), continued:

2013 Series Utility System & Sales Tax Revenue Notes:

Serial Bonds in the amount of $8,890,000 dated June 1, 2013, issued by McAlester Public

Works Authority and used for streets, secured by utility revenues and pledged sales tax,

principal maturing semi-annually ranging from $125,000 to $1,205,000, interest rate at 3.53%,

final maturity February 1, 2028, paid from Bond Trustee Fund. In the event of default, the

lender may: 1) accelerate maturity; 2) gain control of operations through temporary trustees;

3) file suit for specific performance of covenants; 4) file suit to enforce or enjoin action or

inaction of parties under provisions of the note or sales tax agreement. 6,920,000

2014 Series Utility System & Sales Tax Revenue Notes:

Serial Bonds in the amount of $4,910,000 dated May 20, 2014, issued by McAlester Public

Works Authority and used for streets, secured by utility revenues and pledged sales tax,

principal maturing semi-annually ranging from $95,000 to $435,000, interest rate at 3.40%,

final maturity February 1, 2029, paid from Bond Trustee Fund. In the event of default, the

lender may: 1) accelerate maturity; 2) gain control of operations through temporary trustees;

3) file suit for specific performance of covenants; 4) file suit to enforce or enjoin action or

inaction of parties under provisions of the note or sales tax agreement. 3,960,000

2015 Taxable Series Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Notes:

Serial Bonds in the amount of $12,615,000 dated September 3, 2015, issued by McAlester Public
Works Authority and used for streets, secured by pledged sales tax, principal maturing
semi-annually ranging from $200,000 to $820,000, interest rate at 3.68%, final maturity
February 1, 2028, paid from Bond Trustee Fund. In the event of default, the

lender may: 1) accelerate maturity; 2) gain control of operations through temporary trustees;

3) file suit for specific performance of covenants; 4) file suit to enforce or enjoin action or
inaction of parties under provisions of the note or sales tax agreement; 5) require sales tax

to be deposited directly with trustee bank. 10.620.000
Total Revenue Bonds Payable (Private Placements) $ 38.590.000
Current portion $ 3,145,000
Noncurrent portion 35.445.000

Total Revenue Bonds Payable (Private Placements) S 38,590,000

Accrued Compensated Absences:

Current portion $ 238,731
Noncurrent portion 2.148.582
Total Accrued Compensated Absences $ 2,387,313

Claims Liability:
Current portion $ 11,692
Non-current portion 105,232
Total Claims Liability $ 116,924
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Business-type activities long-term debt:

Notes Payable (Direct Borrowings):

1999 CDBG-EDIF Promissory Note with Oklahoma Department of Commerce dated
September 19, 2000, original amount of $275,000 with an annual interest rate of 0.00%,
due in monthly installments of $1,146, final installment November 1, 2021. Secured by
water revenues. In the event of default, the lender may: 1) accelerate maturity; 2) increase
interest rate 6% from date of default until date of payment; 3) cease extending credit to
borrower; 4) exercise any and all rights and remedies possessed by lendor. $ 33,229

2006 CDBG-ED Promissory Note with Oklahoma Department of Commerce dated October 1,
2006, original amount of $125,000, reduced to $67,800, with an annual interest rate of 0.00%,
due in monthly installments of $282.50, final installment October 1,2026. Secured by
economic development revenues. In the event of default, the lender may: 1) accelerate maturity;
2) increase interest rate 6% from date of default until date of payment; 3) cease extending credit
to borrower; 4) exercise any and all rights and remedies possessed by lendor. 25,990

MPWA Note Payable with First National Bank and used for AMI project, dated December 29, 2016,
original line of credit amount of $1,000,000, with an annual interest rate of 3.95%, due in
monthly installments of $18,395, final installment June 29, 2022. Drawdowns to date $973,660.
Secured by 32 pieces of equipment. In the event of default, the lender may: 1) accelerate maturity;
2) assemble and sell collateral; 3) appoint receiver; 4) collect revenues, apply accounts; 5) obtain
deficiency (judgment). 591,091

MPWA Note Payable with First National Bank and used for MCC controls at WTP, dated
January 31, 2017, original amount of $256,000, with an annual interest rate of 3.95%, due in
monthly installments of $4,709, final installment February 2, 2022. Secured by all electrical
equipment. In the event of default, the lender may: 1) accelerate maturity; 2) assemble and
sell collateral; 3) appoint receiver; 4) collect revenues, apply accounts; 5) obtain
deficiency (judgment). 138,006

MPWA Note Payable with First National Bank and used for dump truck, dated February 25,
2019, original amount of $140,165, with an annual interest rate of 3.90%, due in
monthly installments of $2,577, final installment March 1, 2024. Secured by equipment.
In the event of default, the lender may: 1) accelerate maturity; 2) assemble and sell collateral;
3) appoint receiver; 4) collect revenues, apply accounts; 5) obtain deficiency (judgment). 131,732

MPWA Note Payable with Arvest Bank and used for JD excavator, dated August 1, 2016,
original amount of $72,969, with an annual interest rate of 3.47%, due in monthly
installments of $1,326, final installment August 1, 2021. Secured by equipment. In the event
of default, the lender may: 1) accelerate maturity; 2) repossess and sell collateral; 3) charge all
fees associated with repossession; 4) set off amounts owed with deposits; 5) charge interest on

monies due at a rate of 1 1/2% per month until paid. . 33,181
Total Notes Payable (Direct Borrowings) 53,2
Current portion $ 311,380
Non-current portion 641.849
Total Notes Payable (Direct Borrowings) $ 953,229
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Water Rights Contract (Direct Borrowing):
1987 contract with U.S. Army Corps of Engineers for water rights dated December 11, 1987,
original amount of $719,075 with an annual interest rate of 2.59% due in annual installments
of $31,859, final installment December 12, 2019. In the event of default, the lender may:

1) charge interest compounded annually until paid. $ 31,054

Current portion $ 31,054

Non-cutrent portion -
Total Water Rights Contract (Direct Borrowing) § 31.054

Landfill Closure and Post-Closure Liability:

A $4,307,416 accrued liability has been recognized in the McAlester Public Works Authority
to represent the total estimated amount owed by the Authority for closure and post-closure
requirements dictated by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and the Oklahoma
Department of Environmental Quality regulations and represented the cumulative amount of
such costs reported to date based on the use of approximately 72.14% of the estimated
capacity of the landfill. It is estimated that an additional $1,663,496 will be recognized as
closure and post-closure expense between the current statement of net position date and the
date the landfill is expected to be filled to capacity. However, the actual cost of closure and
post-closure may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in landfill
laws and regulation. The restricted use of the landfill has extended its life. The estimated
remaining landfill life is now 33 years.

Current portion 8 -
Noncurrent portion 4.307.416
Total Landfill Closure and Postclosure Liability § 4.307.416

Accrued Compensated Absences:

Current portion § 23,357
Noncurrent portion 210,210
Total Accrued Compensated Absences § 233567

Deposits Subject to Refund:

Current portion $ 109,494
Noncurrent portion 437,975
Total Deposits Subject to Refund § 547,469

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

Long-term debt service requirements to maturity of the primary government are as follows:

51



CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Governmental Activity Debt

Private Placement

Capital Lease Oblipations Pavabie Revenue Bonds Pavable Revenue Bonds Pavable
Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest Prncipal Interest Pnncipal Interest
2020 $ 197,089 $ 13293 § . $ : $ 3,145,000 $ 1395633
2021 58,642 8,712 - - 3,305,000 1,276,895
2022 61,072 6,281 - - 3,480,000 1,151,876
2023 63,604 3,749 - - 3,660,000 1,020,254
2024 57,239 1,221 - - 3,845,000 882,306
2025-2029 - - - - 21,155,000 1,909,535
2030-2034 - - 17.560,000 - . 3
Total 3 437,646 5 33,256 17,560,000 - 38,590,000 7,636,499
Less: Unaccreted Portion of Debt (9,605,661) 9,605,661 - %
$ 7954339 $ 9,605,661 $ 38,590,000 $ 7636499
Business-Type Activity Debt - Direct Borrowing
Notes Pavable Water Rights Contract Obligation
Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2020 $ 311,380 $ 29,854 $ 31,054 $ 934
2021 323,139 18,094 - -
2022 253,052 6,274 - -
2023 32,888 1,422 - -
2024 23,730 273 - -
2025-2027 9,040 - - -
Total $ 953,229 $ 55,917 $ 31,054 $ 934

Component Units have the following long-term debt at June 30, 2019:

Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within
June 30,2018 Additions Deductions June 30, 2019 One Year
Component Unit Activities (MRHCA):
Capital Lease Obligations $ 433,333 $ - $ 190,776 $ 242,557 $ 137272
Notes Payable to Banks 12,859,645 400,000 965,940 12,293,705 1,187,227
Total Component Unit Debt $ 13,292,978 $ 400,000 $ 1,156,716 $ 12,536,262 $ 1,324,499

Notes Payable to Banks (MRHCA):

Included in notes payable are the Series 2016 Hospital Revenue Note (the 2016 Note) and the Series 2017
Hospital Revenue Note (the 2017 Note). The 2016 Note was issued in the original amount of $8,600,000
dated May 1, 2016, which bears interest monthly at 2.55%. The 2017 Note was issued in the original
amount of $3,200,000 dated December 1, 2017, which bears interest monthly at 3.54%. The 2016 Note
and the 2017 Note are secured by the gross revenues of the Authority and require certain funds be
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established with the trustee. Accordingly, these funds are included as assets held by trustee for capital
acquisitions in the accompanying balance sheets. These notes also require the Authority to comply with
certain restrictive covenants, including maintaining a debt service coverage ratio of 1.20 to 1.00 and days
cash on hand of 75 days. The indenture agreements for each note contain provisions that, in an event of
default, allow the lender to accelerate payments of the entire principal amount to be immediately due and
payable.

Also included in notes payable is a promissory note in the original amount of $800,000 dated September
29, 2017, which bears interest monthly at 4.22%. The promissory note is secured by certain property of
the Authority.

Discretely Presented Component Unit
Notes Pavable to Banks

Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest
2020 $ 1187227 § 352,543
2021 1,029,912 312,415
2022 1,064,212 278,112
2023 1,076,562 242936
2024 1,316,405 208,026
2025-2029 2,815,627 676,633
2030-2034 2,680,923 316,421
2035-2036 1,122,837 28,726
Total $ 12203705 § 2415812

Capital Lease Obligations (MRHCA):

The McAlester Regional Health Center Authority is obligated under various leases for equipment that are
accounted for as capital leases. The following is a schedule by year of future minimum lease payments
under the capital leases, including interest at rates of 3.54% to 12.86% with the present value of the future
minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2019:

Capital Lease
Obligations Payable
Year Ended June 30,
2020 $ 141,994
2021 99,952
2022 6,613
Total minimum lease payments 248,559
Less amount representing interest 6,002
Present value of future minimum lease payments $ 242 557
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7. Fund Balances

The following table shows the fund balance classifications as shown on the Governmental Funds Balance
Sheet:

Economic Other
Development Dedicated Sales  Bond Trustee  Governmental
General Fund Reserve Fund Fund Tax - MPWA Fund Funds Total
Fund Balance:
Restricted For:
Grant purposes $ - s - $ - s - s - s 29912 § 29,912
Juvenile programs = - - - - 2973 2973
Tourism - - = - - 101,796 101,796
E911 - = - - - 315,003 315,003
Economic development - - 455,403 - - - 455,403
Other - - - - - 283,546 283,546
Stormwater - - - - - 742,445 742,445
Health - cancer center - - - - - 66,810 66,810
Police capital outlay - - - - - 27,738 27,738
Cemetery - - - - - 394,448 394,448
Technology improvements - - - - - 29,861 29,861
Infrastructure improvements - - - - - 1,022,112 1,022,112
Emergencies - 3,824,227 - - - - 3,824227
Capital improvements:
E ic devel -bond repay - - - - . 800,000 200,000
Debt Service - ] - 558407 5960352 2.185,929 R.704.688
Sub-total Restricted - 1824227 455,403 558407 5960352 6,002,573 16.800.962
Assigned to:
Tourism - - = - - 935,922 935,922
Economic development - - 1,994,461 - - - 1,994,461
Other - - - - - 32,744 32,744
Capital improvements - - - - - 123,678 123,678
Nutrition services 7,686 - - - - - 7,686
Sub-total Assigned 7,686 - 1.994.461 E - 1.092 344 3,094,491
Unassigned 814,347 - - - - - 814,347
Total Fund Balance $ 822033 § 3824227 § 2449864 3§ 558407 § 5960352 §  7.094917 §  20.709.800

Restricted Net Position — Governmental Activities

The following table shows the net position restricted for other purposes as shown on the Statement of Net

Position:

Fund Restricted By Amount

Juvenile Fine Fund State statutes and/or debt indentures  $ 2,973
State Forfeiture Fund State statutes and/or debt indentures 4,604
Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund State statutes and/or debt indentures 394,448
Federal Forfeiture Fund State statutes and/or debt indentures 20,593
Capital Improvement Plan Fund State statutes and/or debt indentures 800,000

$ 1.222.618
Dedicated Sales Tax - MPWA External parties (voters) s 558,407
E911 Fund External parties (voters) 315,003
Reserve Fund External parties (voters) 3,824227
Tourism / SE Expo Fund External parties (voters) 101,796
Economic Development Fund External parties (voters) 455403
Gifts & Contributions Fund External parties (donors) 283,546
Stormwater Fund External parties (voters) 742445
MRHC-Cancer Center Fund External parties (voters) 66,810
Infrastructure Fund External parties (voters) 1,022,112
Sales Tax - Schools Fund External parties (voters) 2,185,929
Fire Improvement Grant Fund External parties {grantors) 260
Police Equipment Fund External parties (grantors) 2,541
CDBG Fund External parties (grantors) 29,652
Technology Fund External parties (voters) 29,861

5 9,617,992
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8. Dedicated Tax Revenues and Pledges of Future Revenues

Sales and Use Tax

Sales and use tax revenue represents a 3.75 cents tax on each dollar of taxable sales which is recorded as
revenue within the respective funds. Upon receipt, the sales tax is recorded as follows:

e 2 cents is recorded in the General Fund.

e 1 cent recorded in the Dedicated Sales Tax Fund MPWA and then transferred to the McAlester
Public Works Authority Fund for the payment of debt service restricted by voter approval.

e 1/4 cent recorded in the Sales Tax Schools Fund for the acquisition, construction, equipment and
financing of education facilities and the payment of debt service for such purpose restricted by
voter approval (effective April 1, 2003 — expired July 1, 2018).

e 1/4 cent recorded in the Economic Development Fund for economic development and the
payment of debt service for such purpose restricted by voter approval (effective April 1, 2003 —
expired July 1, 2018).

e 1/2 cent recorded in Infrastructure Fund (replaces the Y cent above in each of the Sales Tax
Schools Fund and the Economic Development Fund) for infrastructure repairs, maintenance,
construction and improvements (effective July 1, 2018 — expiring July 1, 2033)

e 1/8 cent recorded in the Sales Tax Schools Fund for the construction of a new early childhood
center and safe rooms at the schools (effective October 1, 2018 — expiring July 1, 2033)

e 1/8 cent recorded in the MRHC Cancer Center Fund for the construction of a cancer treatment
center (effective October 1, 2018 — expiring July 1, 2033)

Pledge of Future Revenues

Sales Tax and Utility Net Revenues Pledge - The City has pledged two cents (or 53.3%) of future sales tax
revenues to repay $46,544,339 of Series 2002, 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015 Sales Tax and Utility System
Bonds. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for capital assets. The 2015 bonds are payable solely
from pledged sales tax revenues. The 2002, 2012, 2013 and 2014 bonds and the 1999 loan are payable from
pledged sales tax revenues and further secured by net water, wastewater, and sanitation revenues. The bonds
are payable anywhere from 2020 through 2034. The total principal and interest payable for the remainder of
the life of these bonds is $63,786,499, which includes $17,560,000 of accreted bonds. Pledged sales taxes
transferred in the current year were $4,731,498 and the net utility revenues were $2,716,403. Debt service
payments of $6,217,066, excluding accreted interest, for the current fiscal year were 131 .40% of the pledged
and transferred sales taxes and 83.47% of both pledged and transferred sales taxes and net utility revenues.
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9. Internal and Interfund Balances and Transfers

Transfers:

Internal transfers between funds and activities for the year ended June 30, 2019, were as follows:

Transfer From Transfer To Amount Nature of Transfer
General Fund McAlester Airport Authority $ 351,216 Transfer for operations
General Fund Capital Improvement Plan Fund 699,665 Transfer for capital improvements
General Fund Juvenile Fine Fund 7,800 Operating transfer
General Fund Technology Fund 18,000 Transfer of technology fees
General Fund Infrastructure Fund 85,000 Transfer for capital improvements
Bond Trustee Fund MPWA 45,761 Reimburse for capital outlay expense
Capital Improvement Plan Fund MPWA 303,479 Debt service payments
Infrastructure Fund CDBG Grants Fund 112,869 Matching grant monies
Dedicated Sales T ax Fund Bond Trustee Fund 4,473,030 Debt payments to trustee bank
Sales Tax - Schools Fund Bond Trustee Fund 107,803 Debt payments to trustee bank
Economic Development Fund Bond T rustee Fund 150,665 Debt payments to trustee bank
Economic Development Fund McAlester Airport Authority 60,489 Operating subsidy - grant match
Economic Development Fund MPWA 3,390 Debt service payments
MPWA General Fund 1,775,255 Transfer for operations
MPWA Capital Improvement Plan Fund 390,664 Transfer for capital improvements
MPWA Dedicated Sales T ax Fund 339,984 Transfer for operations
$ 8,925,070
Transfers Transfers Net Transfers/
In Out Internal Activity
Reconciliation to Fund
Financial Statements:
Governmental Funds $ 8,160,735 $ (6,419,167) § 1,741,568
Enterprise Funds 764,335 (2,505,903) (1,741,568)
Total Transfers $ 8,925,070 $ (8,925070) §$ -
Reconciliation to statement of activities: Governmental Business-Type
Net transfers $ 1,741,568 $ (1,741,568)
Reclassification of revenues between activities 20,686 (20,686)
Reclassification of capital asset purchases and expense between activities (2,038,964) 2,038,964
Total Transfers - Internal Activity $ (276,710) $ 276,710
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Balances:

Interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2019, were as follows:

Due From Due To Amount Nature of Interfund Balance

General Fund Capital Improvement Plan Fund $ 800,000 Bond related issues

General Fund Workers Compensation Fund 86,742 GF share of claims liability

MPWA Workers Compensation Fund 12,013 GF share of claims liability

MAA MPWA 255,475 Negative share of cash

$ 1,154,230
_——
Due From Due To Internal Service Funds Net Activity/
Other Fund Other Funds Reconciliation Internal Balances

Reconciliation to Fund

Financial Statements:

Governmental Funds $ 800,000 § (886,742) $ 98,755 S 12,013
Enterprise Funds 255,475 (267,488) - (12,013)
Internal Service Funds 98.755 - (98.,755) -
Total Interfund Balances $ 1,154,230  $  (1,154,230) $ - $

The City continues to report an interfund receivable/payable in the original amount of $3,291,826
between the General Fund and the Capital Improvement Plan Fund (MPWA). This interfund
receivable/payable is the result of questions raised in a forensic audit dealing with questioned transfers
made in prior years from the MPWA to the General Fund. At the current time, the City has not developed
a schedule of annual reimbursements to be made by the General Fund to the Capital Improvement Plan
Fund (MPWA) until the interfund payable is deemed to be satisfied. The current balance of this interfund
receivable/payable is $800,000.

10. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; employee health and life; and natural disasters. The City
manages these various risks of loss as follows:

e General Liability and Physical Property — Purchased commercial insurance with no risk of
loss retained.

e Workers’ Compensation — Self- insured up to $250,000 per occurrence. Additional
coverage is maintained with a reinsurance policy up to a $5,000,000 limit. The
reinsurance policy also covers aggregate losses exceeding $800,000 with a limit of
$1,000,000 during the two year policy period.

e Dental Insurance — Self- insured.

Employee’s Group Medical — Covered through purchased commercial insurance with no
risk of loss retained.

Management believes the insurance coverage listed above is sufficient to preclude any significant
uninsured losses to the City. There were no significant changes in coverage in the current year and settled

claims have not exceeded this insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
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Claims Liability Analysis

The claims liabilities related to the above noted risks of loss that are retained are determined in
accordance with the requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 5, which requires
that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements
indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. For workers’ compensation, changes in the claims
liability for the City from July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Total

Claims Liability

Claims liability, June 30, 2016 $ 250,356
Claims incurred 243278
Claims paid (262,332)
Claims liability, June 30, 2017 231,302
Claims incurred 250,831
Claims paid (356,719)
Claims liability, June 30,2018 125,414
Claims incurred 143,296
Claims paid (151,786)
Claims liability, June 30, 2019 $ 116,924

11. Contingencies
Litigation:

The City is a party to various legal proceedings which normally occur in the course of governmental
operations. The financial statements do not include accruals or provisions for loss contingencies that may
result from these proceedings. State statutes provide for the levy of an ad valorem tax over a three-year
period by a City Sinking Fund for the payment of any court assessed judgment rendered against the City.
While the outcome of the above noted proceedings cannot be predicted, due to the insurance coverage
maintained by the City and the State statute relating to judgments, the City feels that any settlement or
judgment not covered by insurance would not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of
the City.

Federal and State Award Programs:

The City of McAlester participates in various federal or state grant/loan programs from year to year. In
2019, the City’s involvement in federal and state award programs was significant. The grant/loan
programs are often subject to additional audits by agents of the granting or loaning agency, the purpose of
which is to ensure compliance with the specific conditions of the grant or loan. The City has not been
notified of any noncompliance with federal or state award requirements. Any liability for reimbursement
which may arise as a result of these audits cannot be reasonably determined at this time, although it is
believed the amount, if any, would not be material.

ODEQ Consent Orders:

The City of McAlester is under the one Consent Order from the Oklahoma Department of Environmental
Quality (ODEQ) related to the water treatment plant: Case No. 09-241.The City continues to work
towards compliance on this Consent Order.
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Case 09-241 relates to the discharge from the plant’s backwash lagoons, specifically exceedance of Total
Suspended Solids, Manganese and Aluminum. The final problem is the Jower backwash pond was full of
settled solids from the water treatment processes, has been being excavated with track hoe, tractor, with
sludge pump with over 50% removed. To comply with the consent order and make progress towards
improvement of our residuals management, the city has emptied out the top sludge pond completely and it
has been put back into service. Our sludge collection system is completely operational with essential
personnel trained to maintain continuous removal and disposal of sludge. The cleaning out of the sludge
drying beds has been completed. The lower sludge pond is having the sludge removed daily with pump,
tractor, and excavator. The sludge is being transported to the sludge drying beds until material is dry
enough to haul to the landfill.

Asset Retirement Obligation:

The City has incurred certain asset retirement obligations related to the operation of its wastewater
utility system. The estimated liability of the legally required closure costs for the wastewater utility
system cannot be reasonably estimated as of June 30, 2019, since the specific legally required costs of
retirement have not yet been identified. The City anticipates identifying those specific legally required
costs and obtaining an estimate of those costs in the subsequent fiscal year.

12. Pension Plan Participation

The City of McAlester participates in four pension or retirement plans:
1. Oklahoma Firefighter’s Pension and Retirement System (OFPRS) — a statewide cost-sharing plan
2. Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System (OPPRS) — a statewide cost-sharing plan
3. City of McAlester Employee’s Retirement System — a single-employer defined benefit plan
4. City of McAlester Employee’s Retirement System —a single-employer defined contribution plan

Govermmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
Net Pension Asset:
Police Pension System $ 371422 $ -
Net Pension Liability:
Firefighter's Pension System $ 8,158,806 $ -
City Pension 2,504,362 925,561
Total Net Pension Liability $ 10,663,168 3 925,561
Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Police Pension System 690,277
Firefighter's Pension System 2,103,961 -
City Pension 498,924 188,166
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 3,293,162 $ 188,166
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Police Pension System 362,711 -
Firefighter's Pension System 1,117,366 -
City Pension 13,328 27,270
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 1,493 405 $ 27.270
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City of McAlester Employee’s Retirement System Defined Benefit Plan:

The City contributes to the City of McAlester Employees’ Retirement System (the “System™), which is a
single employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the City of McAlester City Council. All
non-union full-time City employees that were employed prior to July 1, 2013 participate in the System.
The City’s retirement ordinance requires that actuarial valuations be performed annually to determine if
the City’s fixed contribution rate is adequate to fund the actuarially determined contribution requirement.
The System does not issue separate annual financial statements. On June 30, 2013 the Defined Benefit
Pension Plan was frozen for all non-uniform active participants.

The following is a summary of funding policies, contribution methods, and benefit provisions:

Year established and governing authority 1995 by City Council Ordinance
Determination of Contribution requirements Actuarially determined
Employer 8.62% of Payroll ($453,602 annual required contribution)
Plan members None required
Funding of administrative costs Investment earnings
Period required to vest 10 years
Eligibility for distribution Age 55 with ten years credited service.
Annual rate of retirement starts at 5% at age 56.
Provisions for:
Disability benefits Yes
Death benefits Yes

A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters
Basis of Accounting - Disclosures of the System's financial condition are prepared using the accrual
basis of accounting. Employer contributions are recognized as System revenues in the period in which

employee services are performed.

B. Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

Active Employees 57
Terminated Vested Employees 30
Retirees or Retiree Beneficiaries 92

Total 179

C. Changes in Net Pension Liability

The total pension liability was determined based on an actuarial valuation performed as of July 1, 2018
which is also the measurement date. There were no changes in assumptions or changes in benefit terms
that affected measurement of the total pension liability. There were also no changes between the
measurement date of July 1, 2018 and the City’s report ending date of June 30, 2019, that would have had
a significant impact on the net pension liability. The following table reports the components of changes in
net pension liability:
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Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Net Net Pension
Liability Position Liability
(a) (b) (a) - (b)
Balances at 6/30/2017 $ 17,143.757 $ 13.612.583 $ 3,531,174
Changes for the Year:
Interest 1,190,824 - 1,190,824
Difference between expected and actual experience 68,272 - 68,272
Benefit payments, including refunds (1,164,396) (1,164,396) -
Net investment ncome - 1,039,420 (1,039,420)
City contributions - 450,504 (450,504)
Plan administrative expenses (129,577) 129,577
Net Changes 94,700 195951 (101,251)
Balances at 6/30/18 $ 17,238.457 $ 13,808,534 $ 3,429,923

The City reported $436,088 in pension expense for the year ended June 30, 2019. At June 30, 2019, the
City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from
the following sources:

Deferred Outfiows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual
expenience $ 101,039 $ -
Net difference between projected and
actual earnings on pension plan
investments 117,610 -
Changes in proportion and differences
between City contributions and change
in proportion share of contributions 40,598 40,598
City contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 427,843 -
Total 3 687,090 3 40,598

$427.843 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the year ended June 30, 2020. Any other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2020 $ 315.339
2021 89,668
2022 (168,422)
2023 (17.936)
$ 218,649
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GASB 67 Pension Disclosures

Since the System does not issue separate financial statements, note disclosures required to be presented in
accordance with GASB 67 are being reported in the City’s notes to the financial statements. Additional
disclosures required by GASB 67 follow.

Additional Accounting Policies. Actuarial Assumptions and Methods (GASB 67)

For GASB Statement 67 purposes, the method used to value investments is the market value (fair value).

GASB Statement 67 also requires the use of the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method. Since this plan
has been frozen, the method used for funding shown on page 57 (Projected Unit Credit) generates the
same pension liability as the Entry Age Normal method.

The plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established by the City Council. The
current asset allocation policy is 70% equity investments, 25% fixed income investments, and 5% cash.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimate of
geometric real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset
allocation as of June 30, 2019 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Real Rate of Returmn
Domestic equity 4.9%
International equity 1.2%

Fixed income 1.0%
Cash 0.1%
Total 7.2%

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.20%. The City has, on average, made
contributions that exceed the ADEC over the past five years. If the City continues to contribute in this
fashion, the plan will always be sufficiently funded to pay benefits due. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all period of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability. The annual money-weighted rate of return, net of
expenses paid from the trust, was 7.0%.

The following presents the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.20 percent, as
well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1%
point lower (6.20 percent) or 1% point higher (8.20 percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(6.20%) Rate (7.20%) (8.20%)
City's Net Pension Liability
City's Net Pension Liability - 2017 $ 5,397,957 $ 3,531,174 $ 1,948,235
City's Net Pension Liability - 2018 $ 5,274,979 $ 3,429,923 $ 1,860,105
City's Net Pension Liability - 2019 $ 5,665,691 $ 3,848,025 $ 2,297,005
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The components of the net pension liability of the City as of June 30, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 & 2019,
were as follows:

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Total Pension Liability $ 16,785991 $ 16,956,873 $ 17,143,757 $ 17238457 $ 17381764
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 13318299 12,547,080 13,612,583 13.808,534 13,533,739
Net Pension Liability S 3467692 $ 4409793 $ 3531174 $ 3429923 § 3848025
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of the total 79.3% 74.0% 79.4% 80.1% 77.9%

pension liability
Firefighter Pension System:

Plan Summary Information. The City of McAlester, as the employer, participates in a statewide cost-
sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan through the Oklahoma Firefighter’s Pension and
Retirement System (OFPRS). The OFPRS defined benefit pension plan provides retirement and disability
benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.
Pursuant to the requirements of Title 11, section 22-102, the City must participate in the plan if they
employ fulltime or volunteer firefighters.

Benefits_provided - FPRS provides defined retirement benefits based on members’ final average
compensation, age, and term of service. In addition, the retirement program provides for benefits upon
disability and to survivors upon death of eligible members. The Plan’s benefits are established and
amended by Oklahoma statute. Retirement provisions are as follows:

Normal Retirement:

e Hired Prior to November 1, 2013
Normal retirement is attained upon completing 20 years of service. The normal retirement benefit
is equal to 50% of the member’s final average compensation. Final average compensation is
defined as the monthly average of the highest 30 consecutive months of the last 60 months of
participating setrvice. For volunteer firefighters, the monthly pension benefit for normal
retirement is $150.60 per month.

e Hired After November 1, 2013
Normal retirement is attained upon completing 22 years of service. The normal retirement benefit
is equal to 55% of the member’s final average compensation. Final average compensation is
defined as the monthly average of the highest 30 consecutive months of the last 60 months of
participating service. Also participants must be age 50 to begin receiving benefits. For volunteer
firefighters, the monthly pension benefit for normal retirement is $165.66 per month.

All firefighters are eligible for immediate disability benefits. For paid firefighters, the disability in-the-
line-of-duty benefit for firefighters with less than 20 years of service is equal to 50% of final average
monthly compensation, based on the most recent 30 months of service. For firefighters with over 20 years
of service, a disability in the line of duty is calculated based on 2.5% of final average monthly
compensation, based on the most recent 30 months, per year of service, with a maximum of 30 years of
service. For disabilities not in the line of duty, the benefit is limited to only those with less than 20 years
of service and is 50% of final average monthly compensation, based on the most recent 60-month salary
as opposed to 30 months. For volunteer firefighters, the not-in-the-line-of-duty disability is also limited to
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only those with less than 20 years of service and is $7.53 per year of service. For volunteer firefighters,
the in-the-line-of-duty pension is $150.60 with less than 20 years of service or $7.53 per year of service,
with a maximum of 30 years.

A $5,000 lump sum death benefit is payable to the qualified spouse or designated recipient upon the
participant’s death. The $5,000 death benefit does not apply to members electing the vested benefit.

Contributions - The contributions requirements of the Plan are at an established rate determined by
Oklahoma Statute and are not based on actuarial calculations. Employees are required to contribute 9%
percent of their annual pay. Participating cities are required to contribute 14% of the employees’ annual
pay. Contributions to the pension plan from the City were $316,849. The State of Oklahoma also made
on-behalf contributions to FPRS in the amount of $737,134 during the calendar year and this is reported
as both expense and revenue in the General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance. In the government-wide Statement of Activities, revenue is recognized for the state’s on-
behalf contributions on an accrual basis of $727,228. These on-behalf payments did not meet the criteria
of a special funding situation.

The OFPRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to OFPRS, 6601 Broadway Ext.
#100, Oklahoma City, OK 73116.

of Resources Related to Pensions - At June 30, 2019, the City reported a net pension liability of
$8,158,806 for its proportionate share of the total net pension liability. The net pension liability was

measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2018. The City’s proportion of the net pension
liability was based on the City’s contributions received by the pension plan relative to the total
contributions received by pension plan for all participating employers as of June 30, 2018. Based upon
this information, the City’s proportion was 0.7248 percent.

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the City recognized pension expense of ($89,176). At June 30,
2019, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and
actual experience $ 1,704,145 $
Net difference between projected and
actual eamings on pension plan
investments - 677,931
Changes in proportion 82,967 434,092
City contributions during
measurement date - 5,343
City contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 316,849 -
Total $ 2,103,961 $ 1,117,366

64



CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2019

$316,849 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the year ended June 30, 2020. Any other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as
follows:

Year ended June 30:
2020 $ 268,925
2021 179,908
2022 (24,348)
2023 151,081
2024 94,180
Total $ 669,746

Actuarial Assumptions- The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1,
2018, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the measurement:

Inflation: 3%
Salary increases: 3.5% to 9.0% average, including inflation

Investment rate of return:  7.5% net of pension plan investment expense

Mortality rates were based on the RP2000 combined healthy with blue collar adjustment as
appropriate, with adjustments for generational mortality improvement using scale AA for healthy lives
and no mortality improvement for disabled lives.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2018, valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2007, to June 30, 2012.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected
returns, net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the
pension plan's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2018, are summarized in the following table:

Target Long-Term Expected

Asset Allocation Real Rate of Return
Fixed income 20% 4.37%
Domestic equity 47% 7.01%
International equity 15% 8.83%
Real estate 10% 6.58%
Other assets 8% 5.70%

Discount Rate- The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5%. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be
made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at contractually
required rates, determined by State statutes. Projected cash flows also assume the State of Oklahoma
will continue contributing 36% of the insurance premium, as established by statute. Based on these
assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
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projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate
of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.

-The following presents the
net pension liability of the employers calculated using the discount rate of 7.5%, as well as what the
Plan's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point
lower (6.5%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.5%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(6.5%) Rate (7.5%) (8.5%)
Employers' net pension liability $ 10,686,439 $ 8,158,806 $ 6,036,012

- Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued financial report of the FPRS which can be located at
www.ok.gov/FPRS.

Police Pension System:

Plan_Summary_Information. Pursuant to the requirements of Title 11, section 22-102, the City of
McAlester participates in the statewide cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit plan administered by
the Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System (OPPRS).

Benefits provided - OPPRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to members of the plan.
The normal retirement date under the Plan is the date upon which the participant completes 20 years of
credited service, regardless of age. Participants become vested upon completing 10 years of credited
service as a contributing participant of the Plan. No vesting occurs prior to completing 10 years of
credited service. Participants® contributions are refundable, without interest, upon termination prior to
normal retirement. Participants who have completed 10 years of credited service may elect a vested
benefit in lieu of having their accumulated contributions refunded. If the vested benefit is elected, the
participant is entitled to a monthly retirement benefit commencing on the date the participant reaches 50
years of age or the date the participant would have had 20 years of credited service had employment
continued uninterrupted, whichever is later. Monthly retirement benefits are calculated at 2.5% of the
final average salary (defined as the average paid base salary of the officer over the highest 30 consecutive
months of the last 60 months of credited service) multiplied by the years of credited service, with a
maximum of 30 years of credited service considered.

Monthly benefits for participants due to permanent disability incurred in the line of duty are 2.5% of the
participants® final average salary multiplied by 20 years. This disability benefit is reduced by stated
percentages for partial disability based on the percentage of impairment. After 10 years of credited
service, participants who retire due to disability incurred from any cause are eligible for a monthly benefit
based on 2.5% of their final average salary multiplied by the years of service. This disability benefit is
also reduced by stated percentages for partial disability based on the percentage of impairment. Effective
July 1, 1998, once a disability benefit is granted to a participant, that participant is no longer allowed to
apply for an increase in the dollar amount of the benefit at a subsequent date.

66



CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Survivor’s benefits are payable in full to the participant’s beneficiary upon the death of a retired
participant. The beneficiary of any active participant killed in the line of duty is entitled to a pension
benefit.

Contributions - The contributions requirements of the Plan are at an established rate determined by
Oklahoma Statute and are not based on actuarial calculations. Employees are required to contribute 8%
percent of their annual pay. Participating cities are required to contribute 13% of the employees’ annual
pay. Contributions to the pension plan from the City were $314,299. The State of Oklahoma also made
on-behalf contributions to OPPRS in the amount of $315,388 during the calendar year and this is reported
as both expense and revenue in the General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance. In the government-wide Statement of Activities, revenue is recognized for the state’s on-
behalf contributions on an accrual basis of $304,311. These on-behalf payments did not meet the criteria
of a special funding situation.

The OPPRS issues a publicly available report that includes financial statements, which can be obtained
from the Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System, 1001 N.W. 63" Street, Oklahoma City, OK,
73116-7335.

jons - At June 30, 2019, the City reported a net pension
asset of $371,422 for its proportionate share of the total net pension asset. The net pension asset
was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension
asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2018. The City’s proportion of the net
pension asset was based on the City’s contributions received by the pension plan relative to the total
contributions received by pension plan for all participating employers as of June 30, 2018. Based upon
this information, the City’s proportion was 0.7797 percent.

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the City recognized pension expense of $267,319. At June 30,
2019, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and
actual experience $ 2,194 $ 348,023
Changes of assumptions 162,214
Net difference between projected and
actual eamings on pension plan
investments 193,414 -
Changes in proportion 16,288 4,889
City contributions during
measurement date 1,868 9,799
City contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 314,299 -
Total $ 690,277 $ 362,711
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$314,299 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the year ended June 30, 2020. Any other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense
as follows: :

Year ended June 30:
2020 $ 199,067
2021 79,543
2022 (207,324)
2023 (68,223)
2024 10,204
Total $ 13.267

Actuarial Assumptions-The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
July 1, 2018, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the
measurement:

Inflation: 2.75%

Salary increases: 3.5% to 10% average, including inflation

Investment rate of return: 7 .5% net of pension plan investment expense
Mortality rates: Active employees (pre-retirement) RP-2000 Blue Collar

Healthy Combined table with age set back 4 years with fully
generational improvement using Scale AA.

Active employees (post-retirement) and nondisabled pensioners:
RP-2000 Blue Collar Healthy Combined table with fully
generational improvement using scale AA.

Disabled pensioners: RP-2000 Blue Collar Healthy
Combined table with age set forward 4 years with fully
generational improvement using Scale AA.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2018, valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2007, to June 30, 2012.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected
returns, net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset
class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included
in the pension plan's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2018, are summarized in the following table:
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Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Real Rate of Return
Fixed income 4.53%
Domestic equity 5.86%
International equity 8.83%
Real estate 6.58%
Private Equity 9.21%
Commodities 5.06%

The current allocation policy is that approximately 60% of assets in equity instruments, including
public equity, long-short hedge, venture capital, and private equity strategies; approximately 25% of
assets in fixed income to include investment grade bonds, high yield and non-dollar denominated bonds,
convertible bonds, and low volatility hedge fund strategies; and 15% of assets in real assets to
include real estate, commodities, and other strategies.

Discount Rate-The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5%. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be
made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at contractually
required rates, determined by State statutes. Projected cash flows also assume the State of Oklahoma
will continue contributing 14% of the insurance premium, as established by statute. Based on these
assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate
of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.

-The following presents the
net pension liability of the employers calculated using the discount rate of 7.5%, as well as what the
Plan's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point
lower (6.5%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.5%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(6.5%) Rate (7.5%) (8.5%)
Employers' net pension liability (asset) $ 1,722,913 $(371,422) $(2,141,945)

Pension plan fiducigry net pesition - Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued financial report of the OPPRS; which can be located at

www.ok.cov/OPPRS.

Summary of Contributions:

Oklahoma Firefighter's Pension Oklahoma Police Pension
and Retirement System and Retirement System
Fiscal Required Percentage Fiscal Required Percentage
Year Contribution Contributed Year Contribution Contributed
2017 298,853 100% 2017 318,644 100%
2018 300,317 100% 2018 309,191 100%
2019 316,849 100% 2019 314,299 100%
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OMRF Defined Contribution Plan:

Effective July 1, 2013, the City has also provided a defined contribution plan and trust known as the City
of McAlester Plan and Trust (the “Plan”) in the form of The Oklahoma Municipal Retirement System
Master Defined Contribution Plan (OMRF). OMREF operations are supervised by a nine-member Board
of Trustees elected by the participating municipalities. The plan is administered by JPMorgan Chase
Bank. The defined contribution plan is available to all full-time employees except those participating in
state fire or police programs. Benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment
earnings. Employees are eligible to participate upon employment. By City ordinance, the City, as
employer, shall contribute to the Fund an amount equal to 50% of the Participant's contributions under the
City's Deferred Compensation Plan 457. The Employer match shall be limited to 6.00% of these
Participant's earnings effective July 1, 2013. The City’s contributions for each employee (and interest
allocated to the employee’s account) are vested at a rate of 100% after 7 years of service. City
contributions for, and interest forfeited by, employees who leave employment prior to fully vesting shall
reduce the Employer contribution. The authority to establish and amend the provisions of the plan rests
with the City Council.

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the City contributed $195,523 to the plan.

OMREF issues separate plan financial statements which may be obtained by contacting the Oklahoma
Municipal Retirement Fund, 1001 N.W. 63" Suite 260, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma, 73116.

14. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB has issued several new accounting pronouncements, which will be effective in subsequent
years. A description of the new accounting pronouncements, the fiscal year in which they are effective,
and the City’s consideration of the impact of these pronouncements are described below:

GASB Statement 84, Fiduciary Activities - GASB No. 84 was issued January 2017, this Statement
establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. The focus of the
criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2)
the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identify
fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities. The
City has not yet determined the impact that implementation of GASB 84 will have on its net position.

GASB Statement 87, Leases - GASB No. 87 was issued June 2017, the primary objective of this
Statement is to increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of
certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and
recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the
contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases
are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to
recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a
lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of
information about activities. The City has not yet determined the impact that implementation of GASB 87
will have on its net position.
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GASB Statement 90, Majority Equity Interests - GASB No. 90, Majority Equity Interests (An amendment
of GASB Statement 14 and 61) —issued August 2018, will be effective for the City beginning with its
fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve the consistency
and comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization
and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. It defines a
majority equity interest and specifies that a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization
should be reported as an investment if a government’s holding of the equity interest meets the definition
of an investment. A majority equity interest that meets the definition of an investment should be measured
using the equity method, unless it is held by a special-purpose government engaged only in fiduciary
activities, a fiduciary fund, or an endowment (including permanent and term endowments) or permanent
fund. Those governments and funds should measure the majority equity interest at fair value. The City
has not yet determined the impact that implementation of GASB 90 will have on its net position.

GASB Statement 91, Conduit Debt Obligations — issue May 2019, will be effective for the City beginning
with its fiscal year ending December 2021. The primary objectives of this Statement are to provide a
single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice
associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt
obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This Statement achieves those objectives by clarifying the
existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability
of the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional commitments
and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt
obligations; and improving required note disclosures. The City has not yet determined the impact that
implementation of GASB 91 will have on its net position.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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Budgetary Comparison Schedules (Budgetary Basis) — Year Ended June 30, 2019

GENERAL FUND (BUDGETARY BASIS)

Variance with

Budgeted A t Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance: § - $ 421,932 $ 588495 $ 166,563
Resources {Inflows):
TAXES:

Sales tax 7,864,551 7,864,551 8,326,130 461,579

Use tax 1,219,247 1,219,247 1,259,895 - 40,648

Franchise tax 569,501 569,501 659,102 89,601
Total Taxes 9,653,299 9,653,298 10,245,127 591,828

INTERGOVERNMENTAL:

Alcoholic beverage tax 163,601 163,601 185,766 22,185

Tobacco/cigarette tax 157,692 157,692 132,508 (25,186)

Gas excise tax 34,934 34,934 33,141 (1,793)

Vehicle tax 125,859 125,859 128,281 2,422

Grant revenue 45,000 45,000 43,495 (1,505)

Healthcare reimbursement by state - - 216,774 216,774
Total Inlergovernmental 527,086 527,086 739,963 212,877

CHARGES FOR SERVICES:

Court costs 355410 355410 292,107 (63,303)

Cemetery opening/closing 26,755 26,755 18,375 (8,380)

Incarceration fee 36,300 36,300 16,660 (19,640)

Cemetery fees 13,595 13,585 5,225 (8,370)

Swimming pool revenue 33,800 33,800 29,145 (4,655)

Ambudance revenue 548,813 548,813 464,602 (84,211)

Street cuts 1,025 1,025 4,696 3,671

Recreation fees 2,550 2,550 3,690 1,140

Oil and gas leases 450,177 450,177 365,435 (84,742)

Abatements 75410 75410 79,165 3,755

Rental rooms 4,850 4,850 5415 565

Burgular alarms 14,150 14,150 13,325 (825)

Camplex concessions 16,555 16,555 21,798 5,243

Firing range fees 500 500 1,210 710

Complexrental 14,200 14,200 9,125 (5,075)
Total Charges for Services 1,594,080 1,594,090 1,329,973 (264,117)

FINES AND FORFEITURES 896,288 896,288 689,088 (207.200)
LICENSES AND PERMITS 84,845 84,845 96,088 11,243
INVESTMENT INCOME 123,626 123,626 40,520 (83.,106)
MISCELLANEOUS:

Auclions - - 179 179

Hay sales - - 925 925

Vendors 200 200 - (200)

Cemetery lots 16,800 16,800 6,694 (10,106)

Demolitions 770 770 8,723 7,953

Court admin fee 4,950 4,950 4,701 (249)

Miscellaneous 6,599 6,599 3,543 (3,056)

Credit card payment fees 13,950 13,950 13,168 (782)

Education & training revenue 3,750 3,750 - (3,750)

Restitution reimbursemenis 10,410 10,410 10,684 274

Reimbursements 37,915 37,915 75,312 37,397
Total Miscellaneous 95,344 95,344 123,929 28,5685

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Transfers from other funds 1,853,493 2,084,170 1,775,255 (308,915)
Total Cther Financing Sources 1.853.483 2,084,170 1,775,255 (308,915)
Amounts available for appropriation 14,828,071 15,480,680 15,628,438 147,758
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(Continued)
GENERAL FUND (BUDGETARY BASIS)
Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):
LEGISLATURE: -
Mayor and Council:
Personal services 4,889 4,889 4630 259
Materials and supplies 1,900 1,900 582 1,318
Other senvices and charges 107,500 107,500 102,103 5,397
TOTAL LEGISLATURE 114,288 114,289 107,315 6,974
ADMINISTRATION:
City Manager:
Personal services 428,230 375,022 371,406 3616
Materials and supplies 2,875 3,531 3,255 276
Ofther services and charges 56,300 55,292 34,052 21,240
Capital outlay 25,000 34,128 34,127 1
Total City Manager 512,405 467,973 442,840 25,133
Finance:
Personal services 396,299 337,898 315,959 21,940
Materials and supplies 2125 4,755 4752 3
Other services and charges 7,200 9,434 9,139 295
Total Finance 405,624 352,088 329,850 22,238
City Clerk:
Personal sernvices 115,280 115,627 115,059 568
Materials and supplies 900 1,077 912 165
Other services and charges 12,864 14,640 12,801 1,839
Total City Clerk 129,044 131,344 128,772 2,572
City Attormey:
Personal services 97,219 89,304 73,052 16,252
Materials and supplies 1,125 1426 1,421 5
Other senvices and charges 64,100 68,276 68,225 51
Total City Attomey 162,444 159,006 142,698 16,308
Court:
Personal services 168,765 165,894 165,836 58
Materials and supplies 1,675 2,973 2,859 114
Ofther services and charges 41,800 46,208 44453 1,755
Total Court 212,140 215,075 213,148 1,927
Interdepartmertal:
Personal services 499 517 377,413 230,017 147,396
Materials and supplies 93,000 63,452 49,896 13,5656
Other services and charges 859,283 789,138 766,567 22,571
Total Interdepartmental 1,451,800 1,230,003 1,046,480 183,523
Information Services:
Personal services 136,713 144779 144,588 191
Materials and supplies 2,023 2,041 1,908 132
Other services and charges 87,000 148,334 145,346 2,988
Total Infformation Services 225,736 295,154 291,843 3,311
(Continued)
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(Continued)
GENERAL FUND (BUDGETARY BASIS)
Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
ADMINISTRATION, (Continued):
CID:
Personal senvices 573,793 518,427 506,958 11,469
Materials and supplies 10,155 5,055 4,223 832
Other senvices and charges 7,680 2,112 1,295 817
Total CID 591,628 525,584 512,476 13,118
TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 3,690,821 3,376,237 3,108,107 268,130
PUBLIC SAFETY:
Patrol:
Personal senvices 2,960,034 3,002,529 2,985,667 16,862
Materials and supplies 150,173 168,775 157,193 2,582
Other senices and charges 138,475 146,832 141,664 5,168
Total Patro! 3,248,682 3,309,136 3,284,524 24612
Animal Control:
Personal services 42 147 43,565 43,561 4
Materials and supplies 8,171 4776 4410 366
Other senvices and charges 1,750 3,579 3,564 15
Total Animal Control 50,068 51,920 51,535 385
Cammunications:
Personal services 205,736 202,474 189,335 13,139
Materials and supplies 1,950 1,950 1,067 883
Other senvices and charges 1,800 1,800 1,104 696
Total Communications 209,486 206,224 191,508 14,718
Fire:
Personal senices 3,061,274 3,199,682 3,192,782 6,910
Materials and supplies 64,791 63,147 57,870 5,277
Other services and charges 139,458 119,212 100,998 18,214
Total Fire 3,265,523 3,382,051 3,351,650 30,401
EMS:
Materials and supplies 43,064 45,746 43,717 2,029
Other senvices and charges 74725 74928 73173 1,755
Total EMS 117,789 120,674 116,890 3,784
TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 6,891,548 7,070,005 6,996,105 73,800
COMMUNITY SERVICES:
Parks:
Personal services 638,542 662,454 649,988 12,466
Materials and supplies 97,978 103,820 86,484 17,336
Other senvices and charges 100,075 132,914 109,671 23,243
Total Parks 836,595 899,188 846,143 53,045
Swimming Pools:
Personal services 89,743 116,011 113,393 2,618
Materials and supplies 36,040 31,609 28,108 3,401
Other senvices and charges 7,500 8,930 8,929 1
Total Swimming Pools 133,283 156,450 150,430 6,020
(Continued)
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COMMUNITY SERVICES, (Continued):
Recreation:

Personal senices

Materials and supplies

Other senvices and charges

Total Recreation
Cemetery:
Personal senices
Materials and supplies
Other senviices and charges

Total Cemetery
Facility Maintenance:
Personal senices
Materials and supplies
Other senices and charges
Capital outlay

Total Facility Maintenance

Car Albert Building:
Other senices and charges

Total Carl Albert Building

TOTAL COMMUNITY SERVICES
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES:
Planning & Community Development:
Personal senices
Materials and supplies
Other services and charges
Total Planning & Community Development
Human Resources/Risk Management:
Personal senvices
Materials and supplies
Other seniices and charges
Total Human Resources/Risk Management
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
PUBLIC WORKS:
Streets:
Personal senices
Materials and supplies
Other senices and charges
Total Streets
TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS

OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfers to other funds

Total Charges to Appropriations

Ending Budgetary Fund Balance

(Continued)
GENERAL FUND (BUDGETARY BASIS)
Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
202,710 198,673 164,639 34,034
31,150 31,150 22,878 8,271
22,280 19,573 14,746 4,827
256,140 249,396 202,264 47,132
233,559 226,133 224,798 1,335
20,040 14,981 12,599 2,382
11,928 21,563 21,093 470
265,527 262,677 258,490 4,187
161,828 161,704 161,400 304
42,199 46,092 44309 1,783
69,255 73,118 70,187 2,921
= 5860 5,860 -
273,282 286,774 281,766 5,008
- 18,713 18,207 506
- 18,713 18,207 506
1,764,827 1,873,188 1,757,300 115,898
251,136 265,224 262,144 3,080
5,910 6,070 4,430 1,640
148,700 152,412 132,346 20,066
405,746 423,706 398,920 24,786
176,345 184,915 184,262 653
36,853 37,168 36,247 921
14,820 29,235 28,453 782
228,018 251,318 248,962 2,356
633,764 675,024 647,882 27,142
713,460 683,386 682,632 754
124,568 143,014 142,198 816
75,450 117,574 116,771 803
913,478 943,974 941,601 2,373
913,478 943,974 941,601 2,373
819,344 1,427,953 1,354,241 73,712
14,828,071 15,480,680 14,912,551 568,129
- 3 - $ 715,887 $ 715,887
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Budgetary Comparison Schedules (Budgetary Basis) — Year Ended June 30, 2019, (Continued)

SPECIAL REVENUE - RESERVE FUND (Budgetary Basis)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance $ - $ - $ 3,767,482 $ 3,767,482
Resources (Inflows):
Investment income 35,000 35,000 56,745 21,745
Amounts available for appropriation 35,000 35,000 3,824,227 3,789,227
Charges to appropriations (outflows):.
Transfers out - - - -
Total Charges to Appropriations - - - -
Ending Budgetary Fund Balance $ 35,000 $ 35,000 $ 3,824,227 $ 3,788,227

SPECIAL REVENUE - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND (Budgetary Basis)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance $ 880,172 $ 1,742,377 $ 2,720,430 $ ! 978,053
Resources (Inflows):
Taxes - - 131,100 131,100
Intergovemmental - 158,000 158,000 -
Charges for senices - - 60,000 60,000
Investment income 13,000 13,000 39,335 26,335
Amounts available for appropriation 883,172 1,913,377 3,108,865 1,195,488
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Finance 135,775 136,521 56,103 80,418
Planning and community development 546,242 1,565,701 388,266 1,177,435
Transfers out 211,155 211,155 211,154 1
Total Charges to Appropriations 893,172 1,913,377 655,523 1,267,854
Ending Budgetary Fund Balance $ - $ - $ 2,453,342 $ 2,453,342

Footnotes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules:

1. The City prepares its budgets for all funds on the cash basis of accounting for all revenues except for
on-behalf payments made, and those that are billed by the City (i.e., misc receivables). The modified
accrual basis of accounting is used for budgeting of expenditures with the exception of on-behalf
payments made, the net effect of certain year-end payroll accruals, and outstanding encumbrances
related to capital items. The City utilizes encumbrance accounting under which purchase orders,
contracts, and other commitments for the expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve a
portion of the applicable appropriation. Encumbrances outstanding and their related appropriations
are lapsed at year end and are re-appropriated and re-encumbered in the subsequent fiscal year.

77



CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2019

2. The legal level of appropriation control is the department level within a fund. Transfers of
appropriation within a fund require the approval of the City Manager, subject to a dollar limitation of
$25,000. All transfers of appropriation above this limitation and all supplemental appropriations
require the approval of the City Council. Supplemental appropriations must be filed with the Office
of the State Auditor and Inspector.

3. The budgetary basis differs from the modified accrual basis as shown in the schedule below:

General Fund
Sources/Inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) “available appropriation” from the budgetary
comparison schedule $15,628,438

Differences — budget to GAAP:
The fund balance at the beginning of the year is a budgetary resource but is

not a current-year revenue for financial reporting purposes. (588,495)
Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources but are not

revenues for financial reporting purposes. (1,775,255)
The City reports on-behalf payments made by state in the General Fund

in the fund financial statements, but are not budgeted. 1,052,522
The City reports the Nutrition Account as part of the General Fund in the

fund financial statements, but are not included in the budget to actual. 84,028
The City budgets for revenues on the modified cash basis of accounting,

rather than on the modified accrual basis. 39.156

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balance — governmental funds . 4.4 4

Uses/Outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) “total charges to appropriations” from the
budgetary comparison schedule $14,912,551

Differences — budget to GAAP:
The City budgets for payroll and miscellaneous accrued liabilities on the

modified cash basis, rather than on the modified accrual basis. 15,217
The City reports on-behalf payments made by state in the General Fund

in the fund financial statements, but are not budgeted. 1,052,522
The City reports the Nutrition Account as part of the General Fund in the

fund financial statements, but are not included in the budget to actual. 293,995
Transfers to other funds and component units are outflows of budgetary

resources but are not expenditures for financial reporting purposes. (1.354.241)

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balance — governmental funds 14 4
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Reserve
Fund
Sources/Inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) “available appropriation” from the budgetary
comparison schedule $3,824,227
Differences — budget to GAAP:
The fund balance at the beginning of the year is a budgetary resource but is
not a current-year revenue for financial reporting purposes. (3.767.482)
Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balance — governmental funds $56,745
Economic
Development
Fund
Sources/Inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) “available appropriation” from the budgetary
comparison schedule $3,108,865
Differences — budget to GAAP:
The fund balance at the beginning of the year is a budgetary resource but is
not a current-year revenue for financial reporting purposes. (2,720,430)
The City budgets for revenues on the modified cash basis of accounting,
rather than on the modified accrual basis. (131.100)
Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balance — governmental funds $257,335
Uses/Outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) “total charges to appropriations” from the
budgetary comparison schedule $655,523
Differences — budget to GAAP:
The City budgets for payroll and miscellaneous accrued liabilities on the
modified cash basis, rather than on the modified accrual basis. 415
The City reports transfers of debt payments in the fund financial
statements, but are reported as expenditures in the budget to actual. (3,390)
Transfers to other funds and component units are outflows of budgetary
resources but are not expenditures for financial reporting purposes. (211.154)
Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balance — governmental funds $441.394

4. For the year ended June 30, 2019, the City complied, in all material respects, with the applicable
budget laws.
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quired Y i
City of McAlester Employee's Ratirement System

Schedule of Changes in Net Penslon Liability and Related Ratios Last 10 Fiscal Years*
2014 2015 2018 2017 2018 2018
Total pension liabllity
Senvice cost 5 - 5 - s - H B s . $ -
Interest 1,125,248 1,168,854 1,170,488 1,178,194 1,190,824 1,195,454
Changes of benefit terms. - - - - - -
Di betwsen expt d and actual 354,880 4,086 25,240 103,085 68,272 161,251
Changes of assumptions - - - - - -
Benafit payments, including refunds of member contributions (892,985) 1§92,553) (1,024,826) (1,084,405) {1,164.386] [1,213,358)
Net change In total pension llability 487,134 171,387 170,862 186,884 84,700 143,307
Total pension llabllity - beginning 16,127,470 16,614,604 16,785,981 16,056,873 17,143,757 17,238,457
Total pension llabllity - ending {a) $ 16,614,804 $ 16,785,981 $ 16,856,873 § 17,143,757 § 17,238,457 S 17.381,764
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer $ 580,226 $ 485,901 5 618,056 $ 600,552 $ 450,504 8 427,843
Contributlons - member - - - - - -
Net investment income 2,444,464 132,780 (240,387) 1,681,613 1,039,420 628,480
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributlons (992,985) (992,553} (1,024,826) (1,084,405} (1,184,306) 1,213,388
Administrative expense (148,960) (127,870) (124,082) {132,257) (128,577) (118.720)
Other 71,351 4 - - - -
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 1,654,086 [481,261) i?il.?\?r 1,065,503 185,051 {274, 785)
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 11,855,474 13,808 560 13,318,208 12,547,080 13,612,583 13,608,534
Plan fiduciary net position - ending {b) $ 13,808,560 $ 13318280 § 12547080 § 13012683 § 13808534 5 13533720
Net pension liabllity - ending (a) - (b) § 2,805,044 3 J.ﬂb?,ﬁg?_ § 4400793 £ 1531174 $ 2425923 5 1B4B0Z5
Plan fiduclary net position as a parcentage of
the total pension liability 8312% 78.3% 74,0% 79.4% 80.1% 77.9%
Covered payroll $ 4,007,667 & 3,714,076 N/A NA N/A N/A
Net pension liabllity as a percentage of covered payroll 88.5% 93.4% N/A N/A NIA NiA

Notes to Schedule:

*Qnly six years are presented because 10-year data is not yet avallable.
In addition the plan was frozen on July 1, 2013,

4, Since the plan's benefils ware frozen as of July 1, 2013, payroll informalion is no longer being
collected because It is no longer needed to perfarm the actuarial evaluation
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Reauired

Sysom

q 4
City of | Employee's

Schedul

of Contributi

Last 10 Fiscal Years*

Contributions in relation to the actuarially
detarmined contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)
Covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

2015

2016

2017

2018

2018

s 488,408

495,901

$ 458,248

583,512

5 478,557

600,552

$

427,842

450,504

s 453,602

427,843

B {6,493}

s (135,268)

s {121,885)

$

(22.662)

s 25,758

N/A (Note 4)

N/A (Note 4)

Notes to Schedule:

N/A (Note 4)

N/A (Note 4)

N/A (Note 4)

N/A (Note 4)

N/A (Note 4)

N/A (Note 4)

N/A (Note 4)

N/A (Note 4)

1, *Only five years are presented because 10-year data is not yet avallable; plan frozen on July 1, 2013,

2. Latest Valuation Date: July 1, 2018

3. Metheds and used to 1 ibution rates:
Actuarisf cost method - Projected Unit Credit
Amortization methed - Level dollar, post 2008 liabillties open, pre 2008 llabilities closed
Remaining amonization period - Closed part = 8 years
Asset valuation method - Actuarial:
Smoothing period - 5 years
Salary increases - Frozen at this time

Investment rate of retumn - 7.02%, net of pension plan investment expense

4. Since the plan's banefits were frozen as of July 1, 2013, payroll informatian is no longer being

collecled bacause il is no longer needed to perform the actuarial valuation.

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Investment Returns

Last Ten Fiscal Years*

2015

2016 2017 2018 2019

Annual money-weighted rate of returmn,

net of investment expense 0.2%

Note to Schedule:

*Only five fiscal years are presented because 10-year data is not yet available.
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Schedules of Required Supplementary Information

SCHEDULE OF THE CITY OF MCALESTER'S PROPDRTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
OKLAHOMA FIREFIGHTERS PENSION & RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Last 10 Fiscal Years*

City's proportion of the net pension liability

City's proportionate share of the net pension

liability

City's covered payroll

City's praportionate share of the net pension
liability as a percentage of its covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

total pension liability

The amounts present for each fiscal year were determined as of 6/30

Notes to Schedule:

*Only five years are presented because 10-year data is not yet awailable.

Current year measurement date is June 30, 2018.

SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS
OKLAHOMA FIREFIGHTERS PENSION & RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Last 10 Fiscal Years"

Statutorially required contribution

Contributions in relation to the
statutorially required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)
City's covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage of
cowered payroll

Notes to Schedule:

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
0.774228% 0.747576% 0.761806% 0.750071% 0.724812%
$ 7,961,756 $§ 7,934,836 $ 9,307,102 $ 9,433,823 $ 8,158,806
$ 2,067,321 $ 2,042,764 2,128,125 2,134,671 2,145,115
385% 388% 437% 442% 380%
68.12% 68.27% 64.87% 66.61% 70.73%
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
$ 285,087 $ 297,937 $ 298,853 $ 300,317 $§ 316,849
285,987 297,937 298,853 300,317 316,849
$ - $ - $ : $ - $ B
$ 2,042,764 2,128,125 2,134,671 2,145,115 2,263,201
14.00% 14.00% 14.00% 14.00% 14.00%

*Only five years are presented because 10-year data is not yet available.
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Schedules of Required Suppl tary Infor

SCHEDULE OF THE CITY OF MCALESTER'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET)

OKLAHOMA POLICE PENSION & RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

City's proportion of the net pension liability
(asset) 0.7942% 0.8215% 0.8551% 0.8220% 0.7797%
City's proportionate share of the net pension
liability (asset) ) (267,389) 5 33,497 3 1,308,556 3 63,229 3 (371,422)
City's covered payroll - 2,217,808 $ 2,401,482 s 2,435,869 $ 2,451,108 L) 2,378,382
City's proportionate share of the net pension
liability (asset) as a perceniage of its covered
payroll (12.06)% 1.39% 53.76% 2.58% (15.62)%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of
the total pension liability 101.53% 99.82% 93.50% 99.68% 101.88%
Notes to Schedule:
*Only five years are presented because 10-year data is not yet available.
Cument year measurement date is June 30, 2018,
SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS
OKLAHOMA POLICE PENSION & RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Statutorially required contribution $ 312,194 $ 316,663 $ 318,644 $ 309,191 $ 314,299
Contributions in relation to the
statutorially required contribution 312,194 316,663 318,644 309,191 314,299
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ $ - $ - $ - $ -
City's covered payroll $ 2,401,492 $ 2,435,869 $2,451,108 $ 2,378,392 $2,417,685
Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll 13.00% 13.00% 13.00% 13.00% 13.00%

Notes to Schedule:

*Only five years are presented because 10-year data is not yet available.
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

84



CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Combining Balance Sheet, General Fund Accounts — June 30, 2019

General Nutrition Total General
Fund Account Fund
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 797436 $ 12,045 $ 809,481

Receivables:
Due from other governments 1,263,896 9,045 1,272,941
Franchise tax receivable 55,499 - 55499
Court fines receivable, net of allowance 1,168,368 - 1,168,368
Ambulance receivable, net of allowance 85,163 - 85,163
Other receivables, net of allowance 93,885 - 93,885
Total assets $ 3464247 $ 21,090 $ 3,485,337

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 162,650 $ 1,737 $ 164,387
Accrued payroll liabilities 435,796 7,994 443,790
Due to other funds 886,742 - 886,742
Unearned revenue 7,761 - 7,761
Due to bondholders 1,681 - 1,681
Total Liabilities 1,494,630 9,731 1,504,361

Deferred inflows of resources:
Unavailable revenue 1,155,270 3,673 1,158,943

Fund balances:

Assigned - 7,686 7,686
Unassigned 814,347 - 814,347
Total fund balances 814,347 7,686 822,033

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and fund balances $ 3464247 $ 21,090 $ 3,485,337
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Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances, General Fund

Accounts — Year Ended June 30, 2019

REVENUES

Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Licenses and permits
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:
Legislative
Administration
Public safety
Community services
Administrative services
Health and welfare
Public works

Capital Outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

Transfers out

Interaccount transfers

Total other financing sources and uses
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

General Nutrition Total General
Fund Account Fund
$ 10,288,791 $ - $ 10,288,791
1,798,106 54,027 1,852,133
1,334,227 - 1,334,227
674,705 - 674,705
96,088 - 96,088
40,520 - 40,520
123,929 30,001 153,930
14,356,366 84.028 14,440,394
107,346 - 107,346
3,081,710 - 3,081,710
8,071,452 - 8,071,452
1,726,536 - 1,726,536
652,091 - 652,091
- 284,427 284,427
946,927 - 946,927
39,987 9,568 49,555
14,626,049 293,995 14,920,044
(269,683) (209.967) (479.650)
1,775,255 - 1,775,255
(1,161,681) - (1,161,681)
(192,560) 192,560 -
421,014 192,560 613,574
151,331 (17407) 133,924
663,016 25,093 688,109
814,347 $ 7,686 $ 822,033
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Combining Balance Sheet, Nonmajor Governmental Funds — June 30, 2019

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Gifts &
Juvenile Fine Tourism/SE Contributi St MRHC-Cancer
Fund Expo Fund E-911 Fund Fund Fund Center Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,973 $ 1,001,779 $ 204,075 $ 326,996 $ 719,699 $ -
Accounts receivable, net of allowance - - - - 76,766 -
Due from other funds - - - - - -
Due from other governments - 87,628 - - - 66,810
Other receivables - - 41,415 - - -
Total assets $ 2,973 $ 1,089,407 § 335490 $ 326,995 S 786,464 5 66,810
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ - -3 41,758 $ 432 $ 10,706 $ 54,019 $ -
Accrued payroll liabllities - 9,931 20,055 - - -
Total liebilities - 51,680 20,487 10,706 54,018 -
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenue - - - - - -
Fund Balances:
Restricted 2,973 101,796 315,003 283,546 742,445 66,810
Assigned - 935,922 - 32,744 - -
Total fund balances 2,973 1,037,718 315,003 316,280 742,445 66,810
Total liabilities, deferred inflows and fund balances S 2,973 ] 1,089,407 $ 335490 $ 326,996 $ 796,484 5 66,810
(Continued)
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Combining Balance Sheet, Nonmajor Governmental Funds — June 30, 2019, Continued

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

Police State Cemetery
Equipment Forfeiture Perpetual Care CDBG Grants Federal
Fund Fund Fund Fund Forfeiture Fund
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,486 $ 36,746 $ 394,448 $ 87,255 $ 22,677
Accounts receivable, net of allowance - - - - -
Due from other funds - - - - -
Due from other govemments 11,333 - - 39,326 -
Other receivables - - - - -
Total assets $ 12,819 $ 36,746 $ 394,448 $ 126,581 $ 22,677

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ - $ 32,142 - $ 96,929 $ 2,084
Accrued payroll liabilities - - - - -

Total liabilities - 32,142 - 96,929 2,084

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenue 10,278 - - - -

Fund Balances:

Restricted 2,541 4,604 394,448 29,652 20,593
Assigned - - B = =
Total fund balances 2,541 4,604 394,448 29,652 20,593

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and fund balances $ 12,819 $ 36,746 $ 394,448 $ 126,581 $ 22,677
{Continued)
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Combining Balance Sheet, Nonmajor Governmental Funds — June 30, 2019, Continued

DEBT SERVICE
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS FUND
Fire Capital Total Nonmajor
Impi Impr Ti logy Infrastructure Sales Tax - Govermmental
Grant Fund Plan Fund Fund Fund Schools Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 260 $ 187,177 $ 13,221 $ 910,224 $ 2,119,118 $ 6,118,134
Accounts receivable, net of allowance - - 51,656 51,656 - 180,077
Due from other funds - 800,000 - - - 800,000
Due from other governments - - - 267,240 86,811 539,148
Cther receivables - - - - - 41,415
Total assets s 260 S 887,177 s 64,877 S 1,228,120 $ 2,185,628 s 7,678,774
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ - $ 63,498 $ 46 $ 171,813 $ - £ 473,428
Accrued payroll liabilities - - - - - 25,986
Total liabilities - 63,489 46 171,813 - 503,414
Deferred inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenue - - 34,970 35,195 - 80,443
Fund Balances:
Restricted 260 800,000 29,861 1,022,112 2,185,929 6,002,573
Assigned - 123,678 - - - 1,092,344
Total fund balances 260 923,678 28,861 1,022,112 2,185,829 7,084,817
Total liabilities, deferred inflows and fund balances 5 260 $ 987,177 5 64,877 5 1,225,120 ] 2,185,928 $ 7,678,774
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CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances, Nonmajor
Governmental Funds — Year Ended June 30, 2019

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Gifts & MRHC-
Juvenile Fine Tourism/SE Expo C ibuti Stor Cancer
Fund Fund E-811 Fund Fund Fund Center Fund

REVENUES

Taxes $ - 8 868,071 $ 541,612 $ - $ - $ 384,035
Intergovernmental - - - - - -
Charges for senices 4,724 93,033 - - 837,163 -
invesiment eamings - - 8,808 = - -
Miscellaneous - 2,773 - 225,168 - -

Total revenues 4,724 963,877 550,420 225,168 837,163 384,035

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Administration - - - 19,338 - -
Public safety 12,523 = 731,955 - - -
Community senices - - - - - -
Administrative sendces - 746,772 - - - -
Capital Outlay - 19,503 274,387 : 527,555 -
Debt Senice:
Principal - - - - 31,346 -
interest and other charges - ¥ - - 8,064 -

Total expenditures 12,523 766,275 1,006,342 19,338 566,965 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures {7,799) 197,602 (455,922) 205,830 270,198 394,035

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Payment to Cancer Center - - - - - (327,225)
Transfers in 7,800 - - - - -
Transfers out - - - - - N
Proceeds from long-term debt - - - - - -

Total other financing sources and uses 7,800 = % = N (327,225)

Net change in fund balances 1 197,602 (455,922) 205,830 270,198 66,810

Fund belances - beginning 2,972 840,116 770,925 110,460 472,247 -

Fund balances - ending 5 2,873 5 1,037,718 5 315,003 3 316,280 § 742,445 3 66,810
(Continued)
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances, Nonmajor
Governmental Funds — Year Ended June 30, 2019 (Continued)

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
Cemetery
Police State Forfeiture Perpetual Care CDBG Grants Federal
Equi t Fund Fund Fund Fund Forfeiture Fund

REVENUES
Taxes $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental 2,402 13,280 - 133,555 12,376
Charges for senices - - 3,581 - -
Investment eamings - 810 6,287 - 180
Miscellaneous - - - - -

Total revenues 2,402 14,080 0,868 133,555 12,556
EXPENDITURES
Current: |

Administration - - - - -

Public safety - 1,124 - - -

Community senices - - - - -

Administrative senices - - - - -
Capital Outlay 2,538 32,142 1,360 284,606 3,656
Debt Senice:

Principal - - - - -

Interest and other charges - - - - -

Total expenditures 2,538 33,266 1,360 284,606 3,656
Excess (deficiency) of revenuss over
expenditures (136) (19,176) 8,508 (151,051) 8,900

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Payment to Cancer Center - - - = -
Transfers in = - = 112,869

Transfers out - - : -
Proceeds from long-term debt - - - = =

Total other financing sources and uses - - - 112,869 -
Net change in fund balances (136) (19,176) 8,508 (38,182) 8,900
Fund balances - beginning 2,677 23,780 385,940 67,834 11,693
Fund balances - ending $ 2,541 $ 4604 & 384,448 § 29652 $ 20,593

(Continued)
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances, Nonmajor Governmental
Funds — Year Ended June 30, 2019 (Continued)

DEBT SERVICE
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS FUND
Fire Capitai Total Nonmajor
Imp Impr t Plan Infrastructure Sales Tax - Governmental
Grant Fund Fund Tachnology Fund Fund Schools Fund Funds
REVENUES
Taxes 5 - § = 5 - § 2,088,573 § 394,034 s 4,284,325
Intergovemmental - - - - - 161,613
Charges for senices - - 91,639 91,080 - 1,121,229
nvestment eamings - - - 4,968 35,606 56,659
Miscellaneous - 92,192 - - - 320,133
Total revenues - 92,182 91,639 2,182,630 429,640 5,843,859
EXPENDITURES
Cument:
Administration - - - - - 19,338
Public safety - - - - - 745,602
Community senicas - - - - 710,971 710,971
Administrative senices - - - - - 746,772
Capital Outiay - 919,762 102,889 1,176,281 - 3,344,689
Debt Senice:
Principal - 192,813 - - - 224,159
Interest and other charges - 8,919 - - - 16,983
Total expenditures - 1,121,484 102,899 1,176,281 710,871 5,808,514
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures . (1,028,302) (11,260) 1,008,349 (281,331) 135,445
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Payment to Cancer Cenler - - - - - (327,225)
Transfers in - 1,090,328 18,000 85,000 - 1,313,998
Transfers out - (303,479) » (112,868) (107,803) (524,151)
Proceeds from long-term debt - 126,734 - - - 126,734
Total other financing sources and uses - 813,584 18,000 (27,869) (107,803) 568,356
Net change in fund balances R (115,718) 6,740 978,480 (38D,134) 724,601
Fund balances - beginning 260 1,039,386 23,121 43,632 2,575,063 6,370,116
Fund balances - ending $ 260 5 923,678 $ 29,861 5 1,022,112 5 2,185,529 3 7,094,817

92



CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Combining Schedule of Net Position, MPWA Accounts — June 30, 2019

Enterprise Fund - MPWA

McAlester Public
Works Authority Landfill Reserve
Operating Account Account Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ] 86,491 $ 2,902,499 $ 2,988,990
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 547,469 - 547,469
Accounts receivable, net of allowance 1,246,560. 32,198 1,278,758
Due from other funds 255,475 - 255,475
Total current assets 2,135,995 2,934,697 5,070,692
Non-current assets:
Investment in joint venture 2,063,840 - 2,063,840
Capital Assets:
Land and improvements 1,570,333 - 1,570,333
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 22,299,112 - 22,299,112
Total non-current assets 25,933,285 - 25,933,285
Total assets 28,069,280 2,934,697 31,003,977
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 174,605 - 174,605
LIABILITIES
Curment Liabilities:
Accounts payable 300,926 9,783 310,709
Accrued payroll liabilities 68,930 - 68,930
Due to other funds 12,013 - 12,013
Accrued interest payable 1,758 - 1,758
Uneamed revenue 60,854 - 60,854
Due to depositors 109,494 - 109,494
Notes payable 311,380 - 311,380
Water rights contract obligation 31,054 - 31,054
Accrued compensated absences 20,502 - 20,502
Total current liabilities 916,911 9,783 926,694
Non-current liabilities:
Landfill closure and postclosure liability 4,307,416 - 4,307,416
Due to depositors 437,975 - 437,975
Notes payable 641,849 - 641,849
Accrued compensated absences 184,515 - 184,515
Net pension liability 859,615 - 859,615
Total non-current liabilities 6,431,370 - 6,431,370
Total liabilities 7,348,281 9,783 7,358,064
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 26,016 - 26,016
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 22,885,162 - 22,885,162
Unrestricted (deficit) (2,015,574) 2,924,914 909,340
Total net position $ 20,869,588 $ 2,924,914 $ 23,794,502
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Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, MPWA Accounts — Year
Ended June 30, 2019

Enterprise Fund - MPWA

McAlester Public
Works Authority Landfill Reserve

Operating Account Account Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for senices:
Water $ 3,031,817 $ - $ 3,031,817
Sewer 1,562,854 - 1,562,854
Sanitation 2,694,695 - 2,694,695
Water taps 4,039 - 4,039
Sewer taps 6,850 - 6,850
Water districts 1,670,593 - 1,670,593
Landfill 2,345 - 2,345
Penalties 250,499 7,091 257,590
Recycle fees 37,729 - 37,729
Subtitle "D" fees - 407,582 407,582
Total operating revenues 9,261,421 414,673 9,676,094
OPERATING EXPENSES
Utility office 513,791 - 513,791
Interdepartmental 859,801 - 859,801
Sanitation 1,967,363 - 1,967,363
Engineering 403,772 - 403,772
Sewer 770,374 - 770,374
Water 1,365,558 - 1,365,558
Utility maintenance 985,016 - 985,016
Landfill 23,436 70,580 94,016
Depreciation 1,671,996 - 1,671,996
Total Operating Expenses 8,561,107 70,580 8,631,687
Operating income 700,314 344,093 1,044,407
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and investment revenue 17,784 43,734 61,518
Interest expense (38,961) - (38,961)
Miscellaneous revenue 71,615 - 71,615
Gain on joint venture 136,936 - 136,936
Total non-operating revenue (expenses) 187,374 43,734 231,108
Income before contributions and transfers 887,688 387,827 1,275,615
Capital contributions 1,848,667 - 1,848,667
Transfers in 352,630 - 352,630
Transfers out (2,505,903) - (2,505,903)
Interaccount transfers 16,684 (16,684) -
Change in net position 599,766 371,143 970,909
Total net position - beginning 20,269,822 2,553,771 22,823,593
Total net position - ending $ 20,869,588 $ 2,924,914 $ 23,794,502
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Combining Schedule of Net Position, MAA Accounts — June 30, 2019

McAlester Airport Authority
McAlester Airport
Authority Airport Grant Airport Hanger
Operating Account Account Account Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash eguivalents $ 27,963 $ - $ 36,760 $ 64,723
Accounts receivable, net of allowance 7,839 - - 7,839
Due from other govemments - 259,622 - 259,622
Total current assets 35,802 259,622 36,760 332,184
Non-current assets:
Capital Assets:
Land and improvements 42,364 - - 42,364
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 8,058,235 - - 8,058,235
Total non-curmrent assets 8,100,599 - - 8,100,599
Total assets 8,136,401 258,622 36,760 8,432,783
DEFERRED QUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 13,561 - - 13,561
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,100 - - 1,100
Accrued payroll liabilities 4,896 - - 4,896
Due to other funds - 255,475 - 255,475
Accrued compensated absences 2,855 - - 2,855
Total current liabilities 8,851 255,475 - 264,326
Non-current liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences 25,695 - - 25,695
Net pension liability 65,946 65,946
Total non-current liabilities 91,641 - - 91,641
Total liabilities 100,492 255,475 - 355,967
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 1,254 - - 1,254
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 8,100,599 - - 8,100,599
Unrestricted (deficit) (52,383) 4,147 36,760 (11,476)
Total net position $ 8,048,216 $ 4,147 $ 36,760 $ 8,089,123
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Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, MAA Accounts — Year
Ended June 30, 2019

McAlester Airport Authority

McAlester Airport

Authority Airport Grant Airport Hanger
Operating Account Account Account Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for senvices:
Rents and fees $ 101,870 $ - $ - $ 101,870
Total operating revenues 101,870 - - 101,870
OPERATING EXPENSES
Airport 195,595 - - 195,595
Depreciation 561,238 - - 561,238
Total Operating Expenses 756,833 - - 756,833
Operating income (Joss) (654,963) - - (654,963)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest expense (52) - - (52)
Miscellaneous revenue 24 - - 24
Total non-operating revenue (expenses) (28) - - (28)
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers (654,991) - - (654,991)
Capital contributions 35,665 4,643,965 - 4,678,630
Transfers in 411,705 - - 411,705
Interaccount transfers 4,644,289 (4,644,289) - -
Change in net position 4,436,668 (324) - 4,436,344
Total net position - beginning 3,611,548 4,471 36,760 3,652,779
Total net position - ending $ 8,048,216 $ 4,147 $ 36,760 $ 8,089,123
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Combining Statement of Net Position, Internal Service Funds — June 30, 2019

Internal Service Funds

Worker's FLEET
Compensation Maintenance
Fund Fund Total
ASSETS
Cumrent assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 19,170 % 73,319 $ 92,489
Due from other funds 98,755 - 98,755
Total assets 117,925 73,319 191,244
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,001 33,399 34,400
Accrued payroll liabilities - 9,872 9,872
Estimated liability for claims 11,692 - 11,692
Compensated absences - 3,005 3,005
Total current liabilities 12,693 46,276 58,969
Non-current liabilities:
Estimated liability for claims 105,232 - 105,232
Compensated absences - 27,043 27,043
Total non-current liabilities 105,232 27,043 132,275
Total liabilities 117,925 73,319 191,244
NET POSITION
Unrestricted - - -
Total net position $ - $ - $ -

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses. and Changes in Net Position, Internal Service Funds
— Year Ended June 30, 2019

Internal Service Funds

Worker's FLEET
Compensation Maintenance
Fund Fund Total

OPERATING REVENUES
Self insurance charges $ 143,296 $ 528,804 $ 672,100
Miscellaneous - 10,261 10,261

Total operating revenues 143,296 539,065 682,361
OPERATING EXPENSES
FLEET maintenance expense - 539,065 539,065
Claims expense 143,296 - 143,296

Total operating expenses 143,296 539,065 682,361

Operating income - - -
Total net position - beginning - - -
Total net position - ending 3 - $ - [ -
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Combining Statement of Cash Flows, Internal Service Funds — Year Ended June 30, 2019

Internal Service Funds

Worker's FLEET
Compensation Maintenance
Fund Fund Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments to suppliers $ (152,668) $ (233201) § (385,869)
Payments to employees - (279,150) (279,150)
Other receipts 151,786 539,065 690,851
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities (882) 26,714 25,832
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (882) 26,714 25,832
Balances - beginning of the year 20,052 46,605 66,657
Balances - end of the year $ 19,170 $ 73,319 $ 92,489
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided
by (used in) operating activities:
Operating income $ - $ - $ -
Change in assets and liabilities:

Due from other funds 8,490 - 8,490

Accounts payables (882) 28,853 27,971

Accrued payroll liabilities - 952 952

Claims liability (8,490) - (8,490)

Accrued compensated absences - (3,091) (3,091)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities $ (882) $ 26,714 $ 25,832

98



CITY

OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
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Budgetary Comparison Schedules — Major Debt Service Governmental Funds — Year Ended June

30,2019

Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance

Resources (Inflows):
Taxes
Investment income
Transfers in

Amounts awailable for appropriation
Charges to appropriations (outflows):

Administration
Transfers out

Total Charges to Appropriations

Ending Budgetary Fund Balance

Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance

Resources (Inflows):
Investment income
Transfers in

Amounts awailable for appropriation
Charges to appropriations (cutflows).

Finance
Transfers out

Total Charges to Appropriations

Ending Budgetary Fund Balance

DEBT SERVICE - DEDICATED SALES TAX-MPWA (Budgetary Basis)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
$ - $ - $ 3,974 $ 3,974
3,932,275 3,932,275 4,163,065 230,790
- = 2,435 2,435
582,829 582,829 339,984 (242,845)
4,515,104 4,515,104 4,509,458 (5,646)
7,000 13,500 12,500 1,000
4,508,104 4,501,604 4,473,030 28,574
4,515,104 4,515,104 4,485,530 29,574
$ - $ - $ 23,928 $ 23,928

DEBT SERVICE - BOND TRUSTEE FUND (Budgetary Basis)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
$ 1,459,665 $ 1,508,427 $ 7,391,405 $ 5,885,978
- - 100,276 100,276
4,766,573 4,766,573 4,731,498 (35,075)
6,226,238 6,272,000 12,223,179 5,951,179
6,226,238 6,226,238 6,217,066 9,172
- 45,762 45,761 1
6,226,238 6,272,000 6,262,827 9,173
$ - $ - $ 5,960,352 $ 5,960,352
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Budgetary Comparison Schedules — Nonmajor Governmental Funds — Year Ended June 30, 2019

SPECIAL REVENUE - JUVENILE FINE FUND (Budgetary Basis)

Variance with
Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance $ = $ - $ 2,972 $ 2,972
Resources (Inflows):
Charges for senices 23,166 10,166 4,724 (5,442)
Transfers in - 13,000 7,800 (5,200)
Amounts available for appropriation 23,166 23,166 15,496 (7,670)
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Public safety 23,166 23,166 12,623 10,643
Total Charges to Appropriations 23,166 23,166 12,523 10,643
Ending Budgetary Fund Balance $ - $ - $ 2,973 $ 2,973

SPECIAL REVENUE - TOURISM/SE EXPO FUND (Budgetary Basis)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
Beginning Budgelary Fund Balance s - $ 252,133 $ 769,658 $ 517,525
Resources (Inflows):
Taxes 795,680 795,680 858,283 62,603
Charges for senices 169,784 169,784 93,033 (76,751)
Miscellaneous 100 100 2,773 2,673
Amounts available for appropriation 965,564 1,217,697 1,723,747 506,050
Charges to appropriations (cutflows):
Administrative senices 859,699 1,111,832 763,726 348,106
Total Charges to Appropriations 859,699 1,111,832 763,726 348,106
Ending Budgetary Fund Balance $ 105,865 $ 105,865 $ 960,021 $ 854,156

SPECIAL REVENUE - E-911 FUND (Budgetary Basis)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance $ 192,447 $ 323,853 $ 633,041 $ 309,188
Resources (Inflows):
Taxes 692,635 692,635 656,602 (36,033)
Investment income 6,750 6,750 8,808 2,058
Amounts available for appropriation 891,832 1,023,238 1,298,451 275,213
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Public safety 891,832 1,023,238 1,004,808 18,430
Total Charges to Appropriations 891,832 1,023,238 1,004,808 18,430
Ending Budgetary Fund Balance $ - $ - $ 293,643 $ 293,643
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Budgetary Comparison Schedules — Nonmajor Governmental Funds — Year Ended June 30, 2019
(Continued)

SPECIAL REVENUE - GIFTS & CONTRIBUTIONS FUND (Budgetary Basis)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance $ - $ 56,548 $ 110,460 $ 53,912
Resources (Inflows):
Miscellaneous - 420,211 225,168 (195,043)
Amounts available for appropriation - 476,758 335,628 (144,131)
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Administration - 476,759 19,338 457,421
Total Charges to Appropriations - 476,759 19,338 457,421
Ending Budgetary Fund Balance $ - $ - $ 316,290 $ 316,290

SPECIAL REVENUE - STORMWATER FUND (Budgetary Basis)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance $ - $ 473,786 $ 472,247 $ (1,539)
Resources (Inflows):
Charges for senices 700,000 700,000 837,163 137,163
Amounts available for appropriation 700,000 1,173,786 . 1,309,410 135,624
Charges to appropriations (outfiows):
Stormwater 700,000 1,173,786 566,965 606,821
Total Charges to Appropriations 700,000 1,173,786 566,965 606,821
Ending Budgetary Fund Balance $ - $ - $ 742,445 $ 742,445

SPECIAL REVENUE - MRHC - CANCER CENTER FUND (Budgetary Basis

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance $ - $ - $ - $ -
Resources (Inflows):
Taxes 491,534 491,534 327,225 (164,309)
Amounts available for appropriation 491,534 491,534 327,225 (164,309)
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Payment to Cancer Center 491,534 491,534 327,225 164,309
Total Charges to Appropriations 491,534 491,534 327,225 164,309

Ending Budgetary Fund Balance $ - $ - $ - $ -
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Budgetary Comparison Schedules — Nonmajor Governmental Funds — Year Ended June 30, 2019

(Continued)
CAPITAL PROJECT - POLICE EQUIPMENT FUND (Budgetary Basis)
Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance $ - $ - 1,264 $ 1,264
Resources (Inflows):
Intergovernmental - 1,347 1,347 -
Amounts available for appropriation - 1,347 2,611 1,264
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Public safety - 1,347 1,125 222
Total Charges to Appropriations - 1,347 1,125 222
Ending Budgetary Fund Balance 3 - $ = 1,486 $ 1,486

CAPITAL PROJECT - STATE FORFEITURE FUND (Budgetary Basis)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance $ - $ 22,332 3 23,780 $ 1,448
Resources (Inflows):
Intergovernmental = 13,000 13,280 280
Investment income - - 810 810
Amounts awailable for appropriation - 35,332 37,870 2,538
Charges to appropriations {outflows):
Public safety - 35,332 33,266 2,066
Total Charges to Appropriations - 35,332 33,266 2,066
Ending Budgetary Fund Balance $ $ - $ 4,604 $ 4,604

CAPITAL PROJECT - CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE FUND (Budgetary Basis)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance $ - $ - 5 385,940 L 385,940
Resources (Inflows):
Charges for senices 4,050 4,050 3,581 (469)
Investment income 7,400 7,400 6,287 (1,113)
Amounts available for appropriation 11,450 11,450 395,808 384,358
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Community senvices 5,400 5,400 1,360 4,040
Total Charges 1o Appropriations 5,400 5,400 1,360 4,040
Ending Budgetary Fund Balance $ 6,050 $ 6,050 $ 394,448 $ 388,398
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Budgetary Comparison Schedules — Nonmajor Governmental Funds — Year Ended June 30, 2019
(Continued)

CAPITAL PROJECT - CDBG GRANTS FUND (Budgetary Basis)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance $ - $ = $ (3.416) $ (3,416)
Resources (Inflows):

Intergovemmental = 195,469 165,479 (29,990)

Transfers in - 238,201 112,869 (125,332)

Amounts available for appropriation - 433,670 274,932 (158,738)
Charges to appropriations (outflows):

Engineering - 433,670 284,606 149,064

Total Charges to Appropriations - 433,670 284,606 149,064

Ending Budgetary Fund Balance $ - $ - $ (9,674) $ (9,674)

CAPITAL PROJECT - FEDERAL FORFEITURE FUND (Budgetary Basis)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance L} - $ - $ 11,603 $ 11,693
Resources (Inflows):

Intergovernmental 33,000 33,000 12,376 (20,624)

Investment income - - 180 180

Amounts available for appropriation 33,000 33,000 24,249 {8.751)
Charges to appropriations (outflows):

Public safety 33,000 33,000 3,656 29,344

Total Charges to Appropriations 33,000 33,000 3,656 29,344

Ending Budgetary Fund Balance $ - $ - $ 20,593 $ 20,593

CAPITAL PROJECT - FIRE IMPROVEMENT GRANT FUND (Budgetary Basis)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance $ - $ - $ 260 $ 260
Resources (Inflows):
Intergovernmental - - - -
Amounts awailable for appropriation - - 260 260
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Public safety - . “ <
Total Charges to Appropriations - - - -
Ending Budgetary Fund Balance $ - $ - $ 260 $ 260
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Budgetary Comparison Schedules — Nonmajor Governmental Funds — Year Ended June 30,2019
(Continued)

CAPITAL PROJECT - TECHNOLOGY FUND (Budgetary Basis)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance § - $ 3,000 $ 8,494 $ 5,494
Resources (Inflows):
Charges for senices 98,800 81,900 89,580 7,680
Transfers in - 18,000 18,000 -
Amounts available for appropriation 98,900 102,900 116,074 13,174
Charges to appropriations (outflows).
Administration 99,900 102,900 102,899 1
Total Charges to Appropriations 99,900 102,900 102,899 1
Ending Budgetary Fund Balance $ - 3 - $ 13,175 ] 13,175

CAPITAL PROJECT - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN FUND (Budgetary Basis)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance $ - $ 168,318 $ 1,039,396 $ 851,078
Resources (Inflows):
Intergovernmental - 99,103 - (99,103)
Miscellaneous 70,000 111,149 92,192 (18,957)
Transfers in 805,267 1,108,617 950,164 (158,453)
Amounts available for appropriation 875,267 1,507,187 2,081,752 574,565
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
City manager 75,000 174,921 158,056 16,865
Patrol - 92,783 89,361 3,422
Fire 30,000 43,070 43,070 -
Parks - 293,612 192,208 101,403
Cemetery 13,000 13,001 11,555 1,446
Facility Maintenance - 120,000 - 120,000
Fleet Maintenance 68,349 127,315 127,310 5
Streets 86,660 97,821 86,660 11,161
Engineering - 4,900 4,224 676
Water Treatment 56,513 56,513 56,512 1
Utility maintenance 545,745 483,251 389,117 94,134
Total Charges to Appropriations 875,267 1,507,187 1,158,074 348,113
Ending Budgetary Fund Balance $ - $ - $ 923,678 $ 923,678
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Budgetary Comparison Schedules — Nonmajor Governmental Funds — Year Ended June 30, 2019

(Continued)

CAPITAL PROJECT - INFRASTRUCTURE FUND (Budgetary Basis)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance $ - $ 82,185 $ 29,055 $ (53,130)
Resources (Inflows):
Taxes 1,966,137 1,966,137 1,818,333 (146,804)
Charges for senices 95,900 99,900 89,205 (10,695)
Investment income 5,000 5,000 4,968 (32)
Transfers in - 85,000 85,000 -
Amounts available for appropriation 2,071,037 2,238,222 2,027,561 (210,661)
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
City manager 125,000 87,140 24,778 62,362
Facility maintenance 80,000 230,180 223,757 6,423
Streets 1,036,537 1,210,222 589,428 620,794
Wastewater treatment 350,000 111,811 30,543 81,268
Water treatment 264,500 271,000 126,443 144,557
Utility maintenance 215,000 215,000 181,332 33,668
Transfers out - 112,869 112,869 -
Total Charges to Appropriations 2,071,037 2,238,222 1,289,150 948,072
Ending Budgetary Fund Balance $ - 3 - $ 738,411 $ 738,411

DEBT SERVICE - SALES TAX - SCHOOLS FUND (Budgetary Basis)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance $ 807,304 $ 807,304 $ 2,443,962 $ 1,636,658
Resources {Inflows):
Taxes 491,534 491,534 458,324 (33,210)
Investment income 2,000 2,000 35,606 33,606
Amounts available for appropriation 1,300,838 1,300,838 2,937,892 1,637,054
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Community senices 1,193,034 1,193,034 710,971 482,063
Transfers out 107,804 107,804 107,803 1
Total Charges to Appropriations 1,300,838 1,300,838 818,774 482,064
Ending Budgetary Fund Balance $ - $ - $ 2,119,118 $ 2,119,118
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Schedule of Federal Awards Expended — Year Ended June 30, 2019

CITY OF McALESTER, OKLAHOMA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

Federal
Federal/State Grantor/Pass through agency CFDA Award Federal
Grantor/Program Title Number Grant # A t Expendi
FEDERAL AWARDS:
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE:
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 2018BUBX $ 2,179 § 2,179
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 2019BUBX 8,886 357
Total U.S. Department of Justice 11,065 2,536
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES:
Passed Through to Oklahoma Department
of Human Services and the Kiarmichi
Area Nutrition Project:
Special Program for the Aging -
Title I1I, Part C - Nutrition Services 93.045 N/A 57,700 57,700
Total U.S. Department of Health and Humnan Services 57,700 57,700
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT:
Passed through Oklahoma Departrment of Commerce:
Conmmumity Development Block Grant 14.228 17283 CDBG 18 112,869 112,869
Conwrmmity Development Block Grant 14.228 17033 CDBG 17 91,936 20,686
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 204,805 133.555
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION:
Federal Aviation Administration:
Airport Irmprovement Grant 20.106 AIP 3-40-0057-016-2018 4,388,535 4,388,535
Airport Improvement Grant 20.106 AIP 3-40-0057-015-2017 275,940 28,071
Total Federal Aviation Admmistration 4,664,475 4,416,606
Passed through Oklahoma Highway Safety Office:
State and Commmity Highway Safety 20.616 FAST M50T-19-03-01-03 4,500 2,307
State and Commmunity Highway Safety 20.616 FAST M50T-18-03-01-02 3,500 2,002
8,000 3,300
State and Commmity Highway Safety 20.600 FAST SE-19-03-06-10 55,000 34,468
State and Cormmamity Highway Safety 20.600 FAST SE-18-03-03-09 40,650 10,454
05,650 44,922
Total Oklahoma Highway Safety Office 103,650 49,231
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 4,768,125 4,465,837
TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS $ 5041695 $ 4,659,628

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Note A - Significant Accounting Policies - The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is prepared on the basis of accounting
consistent with the definition of federal awards expended in the Uniform Guidance (UG).
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Schedule of State Awards Expended — Year Ended June 30, 2019

CITY OF McALESTER, OKLAHOMA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

State Grantor/Pass through agency Award State
Grantor/Program Title Grant # Amount Expenditures
STATE AWARDS:

OKLAHOMA AERONAUTICS COMMISSION:

Oklahoma Aeronautics Commission - Airport Improvement Grant MLC-18-FS 230,675 227,359

TOTAL STATE AWARDS $ 230,675 § 227359
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STATISTICAL SECTION

The STATISTICAL SECTION presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the
information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information
says about the government’s overall financial health.

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the government’s
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the government’s most significant local
revenue sources, sales tax and property tax.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the government’s

current levels of outstanding debt and the government’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the

environment within which the government’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the government’s financial report relates to the services the government provides and
the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Reports for the relevant year.
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CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE
Last Ten Fiscal Years

TABLE 5
Hotel/

Fiscal Sales Use Franchise Motel
Year Tax Tax Tax Tax E-911 Tax Totals
2010 13,020,433 681,427 567,852 426,662 653,841 15,350,215
2011 13,787,766 554,710 687,905 507,415 677,966 16,215,762
2012 14,663,740 592,424 584,264 549,088 650,409 17,039,825
2013 13,357,829 699,017 552,713 471,081 668,209 15,748,849
2014 13,325,717 624,717 607,578 447 768 630,849 15,636,629
2015 13,775,363 641,426 577,352 652,340 600,114 16,246,595
2016 13,842,667 758,666 552,316 759,410 584,718 16,497,777
2017 13,256,719 1,433,238 544,954 655,558 576,406 16,466,875
2018 13,691,840 1,108,444 603,833 722,313 652,139 16,778,569
2019 15,394,077 1,264,682 677,819 868,071 541,612 18,746,261
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CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

TABLE 8
Percentage (2) Amount
Net (1) Applicable to Applicable to
Debt City of City of
Jurisdiction Outstanding McAlester McAlester
Direct - City of McAlester $ 46,981,985 100.00% $46,981,985
Overlapping: McAlester School District $ - 100.00% (3) -
Pittsburg County $ - 44% -
Total $46,981,985 $46,981,985

Outstanding bond debt : 06-30-19
(1) Gross general bonded debt outstanding less debt service reserves.

(2) Determined by ratio of assessed valuation of property subject to taxation in overlapping unit to valuation of
property subject to taxation in the City of McAlester.

(3) Only 76% of City residents would be responsible for the debt.
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CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA

UTILITY SYSTEMS DIVISION
PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE
Last Ten Fiscal Years

TABLE 10
Net Revenue Average Annual/
Eligible Eligible Available for Annual Revenue Bond
Revenues Expenses (1) Debt Service Debt Service Coverage
Series 1999 and 2002 Utility System
2010 povenue Bonds, 1993 CDBG Loan 11,497,861 5,788,341 5,709,520 3,968,564 1.44
Series 1999 and 2002 Utility System
2011 Revenue Bonds, 1999 CDBG Loan 12,910,132 6,753,680 6,156,442 3,968,564 1.55
Series 1999 and 2002 Utility System
2012 Revenue Bonds, 1999 CDBG Loan 13,673,172 7,633,575 6,039,597 3,968,564 1.52
2013  Series 2013,2012,2002 Utility System 13,085,325 6,879,431 6,185,894 4,099,959‘ 1.51
Revenue Bonds, 1999 CDBG Loan
Series 2014, 2013,2012,2002 Utility
2014 System Revenue Bonds, 1999 CDBG 12,503,686 6,117,823 6,385,863 4,537,442 1.41
Loan
Series 2014, 2013,2012,2002 Utility
2015 System Revenue Bonds, 1998 CDBG 13,147,686 6,724,078 6,423,608 4,537,442 1.42
Loan
Series 2015, 2014, 2013,2012,2002
2016 Utility System Revenue Bonds, 1999 14,753,173 5,470,231 9,282,942 5,866,670 1.58
CDBG Loan
Series 2015, 2014, 2013,2012,2002
2017  Utility System Revenue Bonds, 1998 14,745,719 6,620,406 8,125,313 5,866,670 1.38
CDBG Loan
Series 2015, 2014, 2013,2012,2002
2018 Utility System Revenue Bonds, 1998 15,531,372 6,969,950 8,561,422 5,924,056 1.45
CDBG Loan
Series 2015, 2014, 2013,2012,2002
2019 Utility System Revenue Bonds, 1999 14,407,592 6,959,691 7,447,901 5,988,615 1.24

CDBG Loan

(1) Excludes depreciation and amortization expense
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Employer

McAlester Army Ammunition Plant
McAlester Regional Health Center
McAlester Public Schools
Wal Mart
Oklahoma State Penitentiary
Spirit Aerospace, Inc.
City of McAlester (full time only)
Choctaw Casino
Berry Plastics
Lowe's

Totals

Product/Business Employees
Ammunition 1,821
Health Care 919
Education 390
Retail Sales 389
Corrections 283
Manufacturing/Assembling 234
Municipality 198
Gaming 98
Manufacturing 175
Retail Sales 100

4,607

2009
% of Total

City Employment
14.6%

7.4%

3.1%

3.1%

2.3%

1.9%

1.6%

0.8%

1.4%

0.8%

36.9%

*McAlester Employers, McAlester Chamber of Commerce, and Bureau of Labor and Statistics.

Total Employed in McAlester

12,500

126

CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
Current and Ten Years Ago
TABLE 12
2019
% of Total

Employees City Employment
2,500 16.1%

800 5.2%

350 2.3%

300 1.9%

300 1.9%

350 2.3%

214 1.4%

150 1.0%

200 1.3%

_ 140 0.9%
5304 34.2%

16,500



LTl

nobsigmmm (g)

saoIYO 101ISIQ 1A1ISIQ 10049 ISV ()
woo padxaoiwoucda mmm (g)
Aobeag'mmm (2)

AoD snsua0 ziapunioe) mmm ()

:$921N0S
%Ll G6Z'C 1'LE L¥6'vy 9€8'/18 861'8l 6102
%S9 ozL'e c9e zec'ey 16t'262 £8€'8l 810¢
%L'9 090'¢ 0'L€ SLL'LY L18'S5. £8€'8l 2102
%.L°9 160'S A §8.'0v €2/'9v. oLe'sl 9102
%¥'S gzl'e 0'6¢E 9£2'9¢ 8zz'c99 £0€'8l S10¢2
%LV LLi'e 0'6¢€ 9€2'9g 822'€99 £0g'8l vL0C
%.L'S srl'e o'6¢ 9€2'9¢ 8¢C'€99 €0E'8l £10¢
%b'S 8r's 0'6E 9¢£2'9¢ 8ZZ'c99 £0e'8l (41114
%8G IbS'e 0'6¢ 808'vE PLLPP9 2es'sl 1102
%99 lel'e (A zee'ee €52'019 ¥8¢€'8l 0102
(g) avey (¥) Juswijjosuz (€) uoneindod jo (2) swoauj (spuesnoyj ui) (1) uoneindod Jeap
juawhojdwaun jooyoss oby uelpap |euosiad awoou| Jlepuajed

ejdes Jad jeuosiad

€l 318vl

sSied ) Jepuaje) uaj jseT

SOILSILYLS JINONOD3 ANV JIHdVYOO0W3d
VINOHVIYO ‘¥31S3TVON 40 ALID



OPERATING INFORMATION

128



91z 6k ZiT
L1 8 e
ol vl 6
0 0 1]
(4] [4% [43
14 14 14
3 4 3
0 0 0
L] ] ]
0 0 0
It 27 62
€ € €
S S S
4} 0 ]
14 14 14
14 14 €
Si Sl vl
124 (14 12
€ € €
1] 0 0
£l 14 el
S S S
Z0L S0 %Ol
54 b4 [44
oL ol 0
14 14 v
3 2 3
9 9 e
or 6¢ 8t
14 ve e
[4 [4 [4
4 [ 4
3 3 12
2 3 b
S S )
€ € €
I [4 [4
S E S
14 € €

60z 8loz LiOT
Jeap  1B9A  JEBA
1eds|d [eas)d [eIsid

¥i 3navl
S4Ea) [eIS|4 UB] e

rn%N ~3N

[]*4 144 e 62¢ L1 74
14 9¢ (4 0§ (4 11 9
113 ol ] el vi oL 13
0 0 VA -] ] 2] 8
L cl <l (43 43 <l €}
S 14 14 14 14 14 14
I 4 4 4 14 14 14
0 Q 0 3 + 3 9l
] [*] L 2] L A -]
0 0 0 [4 [4 4 14
o 0g 6T e L e ce
€ £ € 4 14 14 14
S ] S S S S S
0 0 a 0 0 0 0
14 14 ) S 5 S S
14 14 € S S S 9
14 vl 1 St 1% St el
(44 ¥4 X4 14 €2 4 .14
€ € € € € € €
0 0 0 0 0 0 €
145 €l el 143 145 145 143
S ] S 9 9 L 8
01 sob (411 ol S0l 0ok ot
124 14 154 ey 124 ey 144
o4 ol o4 oL oL A S
14 14 14 14 14 14 14
3 3 l [ 4 14 4
] 2] ] 8 8 L cl
6E 6€ 9€ A g8e pi A
24 [ ¥4 -1 8) F13 Ll L
3 3 I 13 3 3 3
I 14 4 € £ € C
3 3 3 0 0 0 0
3 3 3 0 0 0 0
) S S ) 14 14 9
4 4 - 11 z z 4
4 4 ] 3 3 3 3
14 14 € 14 14 14 €
€ € € c I 4 <
910z S§K0Z ¥LoZ €l0Z TI0Z L0z OLoT
Jea)s Jeap Je9A JBIA JBOA JEap JEap

e3siy |B28jd [|easid |edsid |eds|d |edsly |edsiy

1o3auny Aq saako]dui3 paysbpng aunl-|nd oL

SORNAN lejoL
anuBuBIUBIY AN
juauyeas] Jajep
J8JeAA S1SEA
Bulisauibug
nypuer]

8JSEA PIlOS

M P ‘sded 0 =301
aoueuajuiew Buippng
Aatawa)

fesgr]

uonunN

odx3

uojealnny B Syed

M 3 ‘Ded

J

uopeEpodsuel) |ejog
yodity

foguod dwes|
sj@ass

abeies |enua)
uogeyuodsues)

Kepaipnr 3 Aa4es 211Gnd |80L
ang

1163 SUoyEIIUNWLWCYD
SUOHEJILNWIWOD

jonuo) |ewuy

(sango=1aq) alo

soljod

Aseppipng ® Ayajes oljand

JUSWIUIAADE) [EIIUDE) [E30]
Sa0lAI8S UoHeuLQU]
S30IN0S3Y UBWINH
wsunoL

juswdojans( 91WOUCD]
Bujuued

{eba

Wl Auo

3aoueUl

Jabeuey A0
JUSUUIAA0D) [RIUID

Wesboiguonaung

WYHO0N/NOLLONNA A8 STIA0TNT LNFWNHIACD ALID GALIDANE LNTTYAINDI 3WLL-TIN
VWOHVYTIO ‘HILSTTVON 40 ALID



000'8
5148

000'8
evi

0008
evi

o0z'e
S€0'L
o€z

ooz'e
S€0'L
oez

00z's
0.6
0L}

144
260'GE
008'c

144
260'S€E
008'€

i
000's€
008'€

MOND—OWN~ =~ 0
-
DNO~®MID — =+ N
AN MWD~ N

o
=

sel

m
o
~

0c
86¢

m
[\

86¢

414

@

@®
<+ © ©
-

€5 0s

€l €l 4%

810z
i88A (2951

6102
JEDA [B9S1d

2102
JEDA |ROS1Y

000'8
eVl

00Z'E
0.6
0Ll

i
000'S€E
008'c

-

ONOW*-=MI0 - -+« 0N~

M N
=
=

14
862

0§

€l

910¢
JEDA [BOSIY

000'8
145

00Z'e
0.6
0L}

9l
000'S€
008'E

AN O OO N

M
[~
-

(]
o~

86¢

0

0§

[43

si02
iea) |easid

000'8
%43

00z’
0.6
0L}

L
000'S€E
008'E

OCONOCEr MWV T~ " « v
1=

€0l

%4
862

< © 0
p=s

€5

ci

rioz
FLEYNLEET]

0008
vl

00z'e
046
0L}

2%
000'SE
008'c

G NW TN

Mm o
o -
-

4
86¢C

€5

13

€10z
183 [B2S14

0¢tl

0o0's
evl

00z’
696
0L}

[
000'GE
008'€

OONOW™~ MW~ v «—
b=

(v}
o
-

€¢
B6C

¥S

I3

[41:14
Jeaj jeosid

000'8s
vl

00Z'e
V56
0L

ol
000'SE
00B'E

ONOTTMWND ¥~ —

(=]
-

€0l

(44
86¢C

23

[3174
ABBA BOSI4

000'8
Evi

0oz'e
CEB
0L

1}
000's€
008'€

NO«~MW ™~ v

o om
=

€0l

[44
B6C

PA:]

ol

atoz
lea) jeasiy

Aloede Juswieasj Apeq
(sajiw) siames Atejiueg
13)Ema)sepn
(suo}jeb jo spuesnoy}) Aoedeo abeiolg
sjuelpAy a114
(saw) sulew Jajepn
I91BAA
Aiauiyoey 9 S3OIYEA
(paulejuie|y) siold |eloL
Hueo- s10ld
Aepwan

Kiesqry
(1aua) adys) Jetesyuydwy
£10¢2 uspleg Ayunwwo)
102 8s4n0D 09 ysIq 93qsiy
¥L0z Yed Boq
800Z Ped ysejds
0102 ded s s
1861 (Jeaq SMN) wnieloqly
sjood Buipepn
sjood
18ua) Aunwwod)
SHNOY sluuaj
SpJaY l|eqiooy/ 180085
spuowelp ||[eqyos/[eqsseg
spunoibAe|q
abealoy
uoneasoal pue syled
s|eubis ayes )
sajw jeang
sjealls
S3PIYaA
syonL
suoiels
alld
Sjun joiled
suoyels
82ljod
sBuippng
JUSLULISAOY) [EJSUSD)

welboigjuanouny

§IL 318Vl
sJea), [EISI4 U] JSET

weifiorgiuonouny Aq sansnels jossy eyded

VIWOHV IO ‘¥3LSTTVON 40 ALID



[£3!

sjuawipedaq AilD SNOUEBA :92IN0S

“Teak Tepua[ed U8 SONSNEIS 931j0d PUB A1 4

£5 6 ool Sel £el 1 J * - = sieJauny

zl 534 65 z8 [:14 -1 = > - . 07 Plos/paseyand Msjaway
168'LS 029'L5 98b'Es LIE'LS 282'0 152'05 125'1€ 6.6'28 olv'ee z19'ze 4 youn 19wag ug
£05'89 8EE'Z9 829'89 169'65 €26'2S £26'25 12T'EE 619'l5 L¥0'2s [ joid-BIusg Joag
00S's 002's 986'y [7]:3 89E'Z BOE'Z ¥ZL'L 299'l L'l yiv'e lapad Aunwwoed
3 b 4 3 E- - - = = = Heq Asualy
I l 3 l ] i - = - = 3jua) |euonesIday
4 L 4 4 z ) - . - . 18pJED MUNIwuIo)
4 3 L L ! b = - - . wnjaloqy
4 1 L b ! b = = = = Jajeaypyduy
L S S g 5 g . . - - syelL Buiiem
3 3 3 3 3 ! ™ s - E Sled aeys
l I 3 l 3 b - - - = ped ysejdg
14 4 ¥ 14 ¥ ¥ = ] = = sHnoD jleqiavseq
[ [ € € € £ - 4 = = 0 ) sjood Buipepy
£ £ € £ £ € . ] * * s100d Buwuimg
3 8 b b ! I c: . - = >ed 6og
zl £l zy 4} Zh zi - - = = syed
4 4 3 8 1 ' - = = - ) 4|09 ¥s1q 99gsU4
9 9 9 9 ] 9 9 ] 9 9 3HNOD JO #) sWUd)
z 4 [4 4 z z z 4 4 4 SpIay o #) Ja3oog
[ ] [ 8 B 8 6 [ 6 6 qyos-plald Al

uonea1IaY g syied
- 6 3 8 8 4 S [ oL Ang
€9 85 05 05 0L 8 6LL 90l 18 201 |EIDIBUILIOD
598 SIZ'L o144 0.9 68L'L G8Z'L ove'L 262'L 99t g€zl |enuapisay
S}uUNoooYy Map
sapn
225’6 1¥8'6 188'6 zir'ol 60411 €80l 288'9 'S 819'vL 8LL's SUONEIOIA aUseL]
86 ¥0i 864 202 ¥52 [:T44 951 €62 [:193 aze SUORE[OIA Bunped
602’8 129'8 +0L'8 2p0'} g/z'0L ig:] 5.8 0.8 696 gev'l 1inpy
686 988 096 -1 09k'L - o N ] - sJouin
yze vee Sty 602 825 89 or 62 L vl ajlusang
s)sauy [eoshyd
adljod
181 ZEL 113 a0l £6 ovl 85} 181 Zyl 48 paysinbiunxg sai4
z00'e 866'C 9.0't ' £08'T 859 9e'e 8/E'T 951'T 8002 odsay fousblawg
a4
6L02 siloz Lioz 9Loz sL02 vi0z €102 (4174 Loz ooz weiboid/uonoung
9L 379Vl

SIeaj |easiq uaj jse
weiboigduonaung Aq siojeaipu) buiesadg
VIWOHVY IO “Y3LSTTVOW 40 ALID



